
- 1 - 

 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
 

MEETING OF THE AUDIT BOARD 
 

THURSDAY 29TH MARCH 2012 
AT 6.00 P.M. 

 
CONFERENCE ROOM, THE COUNCIL HOUSE, BURCOT LANE, BROMSGROVE 

 
 

MEMBERS: Councillors L. C. R. Mallett (Chairman), J. S. Brogan (Vice-
Chairman), Ms. M. T. Buxton, Dr. B. T. Cooper, S. J. Dudley, 
Miss P. A. Harrison and Mrs. H. J. Jones 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1. To receive apologies for absence  
 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 

3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Audit Board held 
on 2nd February 2012 (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

4. Audit Commission Annual Audit Letter 2010/2011 (Pages 5 - 20) 
 

5. Audit Commission Annual Grants Report 2010/2011 (Pages 21 - 34) 
 

6. Audit Commission Opinion Plan (Pages 35 - 60) 
 

7. Audit Commission Progress Report (Pages 61 - 74) 
 

8. Audit Commission - Transfer of the audit practice - verbal update from Liz 
Caves  
 

9. National Fraud Initiative Update (Pages 75 - 78) 
 

10. Overpayments Update (Pages 79 - 82) 
 

11. Provisional Audit Annual Plan 2012-2013 (Pages 83 - 92) 
 



- 2 - 

11a Statement of Accounting Policies (Pages 93-116) 
 

12. To consider, and if considered appropriate, to pass the following resolution to 
exclude the public from the meeting during the consideration of items of 
business containing exempt information:-  
 
"RESOLVED that under Section 100 I of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended, the public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of 
the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A to the 
Act, as amended, the relevant paragraphs of that part, in each case, being as 
set out below, and that it is in the public interest to do so:- 
 

Item No. Paragraphs  
13 7  
14 7 " 

  
13. Protecting the Public Purse (Pages 117 - 126) 

 
14. Internal Audit Monitoring Report (Pages 127 - 162) 

 
15. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the 

Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the 
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until 
the next meeting  
 
 
 
 

 K. DICKS 
Chief Executive  

The Council House 
Burcot Lane 
BROMSGROVE 
Worcestershire 
B60 1AA 
 
21st March 2012 
 



- 3 - 

 
 
 

INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC 
 
Access to Information  
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 widened the rights of 
press and public to attend Local Authority meetings and to see certain 
documents.  Recently the Freedom of Information Act 2000 has further 
broadened these rights, and limited exemptions under the 1985 Act. 
 

Ø You can attend all Council, Cabinet and Committee/Board 
meetings, except for any part of the meeting when the business 
would disclose confidential or “exempt” information. 

Ø You can inspect agenda and public reports at least five days before 
the date of the meeting. 

Ø You can inspect minutes of the Council, Cabinet and its 
Committees/Boards for up to six years following a meeting. 

Ø You can have access, upon request, to the background papers on 
which reports are based for a period of up to six years from the date 
of the meeting.  These are listed at the end of each report. 

Ø An electronic register stating the names and addresses and 
electoral areas of all Councillors with details of the membership of 
all Committees etc. is available on our website. 

Ø A reasonable number of copies of agendas and reports relating to 
items to be considered in public will be made available to the public 
attending meetings of the Council, Cabinet and its 
Committees/Boards. 

Ø You have access to a list specifying those powers which the Council 
has delegated to its Officers indicating also the titles of the Officers 
concerned, as detailed in the Council’s Constitution, Scheme of 
Delegation. 

 
You can access the following documents: 
 

Ø Meeting Agendas 
Ø Meeting Minutes 
Ø The Council’s Constitution 

 
at  www.bromsgrove.gov.uk 
 



- 4 - 

Declaration of Interests - Explained 
 
Definition of Interests 
 
A Member has a PERSONAL INTEREST if the issue being discussed at a 
meeting affects the well-being or finances of the Member, the Member’s family 
or a close associate more than most other people who live in the ward 
affected by the issue. 
 
Personal interests are also things relating to an interest the Member must 
register, such as any outside bodies to which the Member has been appointed 
by the Council or membership of certain public bodies. 
 
A personal interest is also a PREJUDICIAL INTEREST if it affects: 

Ø The finances, or 
Ø A regulatory function (such as licensing or planning) 

Of the Member, the Member’s family or a close associate AND which a 
reasonable member of the public with knowledge of the facts would believe 
likely to harm or impair the Member’s ability to judge the public interest. 
 
Declaring Interests 
 
If a Member has an interest they must normally declare it at the start of the 
meeting or as soon as they realise they have the interest. 
 
EXCEPTION: 
If a Member has a PERSONAL INTEREST which arises because of 
membership of another public body the Member only needs to declare it if and 
when they speak on the matter. 
 
If a Member has both a PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTEREST they 
must not debate or vote on the matter and must leave the room. 
 
EXCEPTION: 
If a Member has a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a meeting 
at which members of the public are allowed to make representations, give 
evidence or answer questions about the matter, the Member has the same 
rights as the public and can also attend the meeting to make representations, 
give evidence or answer questions BUT THE MEMBER MUST LEAVE THE 
ROOM ONCE THEY HAVE FINISHED AND CANNOT DEBATE OR VOTE. 
However, the Member must not use these rights to seek to improperly 
influence a decision in which they have a prejudicial interest. 
 
For further information please contact Committee Services, Legal, 
Equalities and Democratic Services, Bromsgrove District Council, The Council 
House, Burcot Lane, Bromsgrove, B60 1AA 
 
Tel: 01527 873232 Fax: 01527 881414 
Web: www.bromsgrove.gov.uk     email: committee@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
 



 

B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 
 
 

MEETING OF THE AUDIT BOARD 
 

THURSDAY, 2ND FEBRUARY 2012 
AT 6.00 P.M. 

 
 

PRESENT: Councillors L. C. R. Mallett (Chairman), S. J. Dudley, Miss P. A. Harrison 
and Mrs. H. J. Jones 
 

 Observers:  Councillors E. J. Murray, R. J. Shannon and S. P. Shannon  
  
 Officers: Mrs. S. Hanley, Ms. J. Pickering, Mrs. T. Kristunas, 

Mr. A. Bromage and Mrs. P. Ross 
 

 
 

22/11 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J. S. Brogan, Ms. M. T. 
Buxton and Dr. B. T. Cooper.  
 

23/11 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 

24/11 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Audit Board held on 15th December were 
submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a correct record. 
 
(Note: Under this item the Board agreed to alter the running order of the 
agenda and that any agenda items not considered during the meeting be 
deferred to the next meeting of the Board). 
 

25/11 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972  
 
RESOLVED that under Section 100 I of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended, the public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of 
the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A to the 
At, as amended, the relevant paragraphs of that part being as set out below, 
and that it is in the public interest to do so: 
 
 Minute No.  Paragraphs 
    26/11        7 
    27/11            2 and 7  

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Audit Board 
2nd February 2012 

 

 
26/11 INTERNAL AUDIT MONITORING REPORT  

 
As requested at the previous meeting of the Board, the Deputy Chief 
Executive (Leisure, Culture, Environment and Community Services), the 
Executive Director, Finance and Corporate Resources and the Head of 
Finances and Resources attended the meeting to provide Members with an 
update on the outstanding audits yet to be completed. 
 
The Executive Director, Finance and Corporate Resources informed the Board 
that the Internal Audit Monitoring Report would be monitored by the 
Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service Team.  Officers then provided 
Members with updates for each of the outstanding audits.  Following each 
update the Executive Director, Finance and Corporate Resources highlighted 
to Members the audits indentified as now being a lower priority and the audits 
that should be removed from the Internal Audit Monitoring Report.   
 
Members were further informed that the Corporate Management Team (CMT) 
had been made aware of the concerns raised by the Board and that CMT 
were committed to giving priority to overdue actions. 
 
The Chairman thanked officers for attending and for the detailed updates 
provided and in doing so he also stated that it was important that there was no 
further slippage. 
 

27/11 FRAUD INVESTIGATION UPDATE REPORT  
 
The Executive Director, Finance and Corporate Resources apologised to 
Members for information detailed in the Corporate Anti-Fraud Performance 
Report 2010-2011 presented to the Board on 15th December 2011.  The 
report was misleading and had shown incorrect information in relation to the 
two cases referred to within the report. 
 
Members were asked to consider the Fraud Investigation Update report which 
presented further detailed information and clarification in relation to the two 
cases referred to in the preamble above.  The Executive Director,   Finance 
and Corporate Resources and officers present responded to Members’ 
questions.  Members were asked to note the ‘Lesson Learned’ overview as 
detailed in the report. 
 
Further discussion followed on the processes and decisions taken and officers 
responded to Members’ questions in relation to these. 
 
RESOLVED that the Corporate Anti-Fraud process and decision taken in 
relation to the specific investigation highlighted, be noted. 
 
(Note: At this stage, due to the meeting becoming inquorate, it was agreed 
that the following agenda items be deferred until the next meeting of the Audit 
Board 
 
 

Page 2



Audit Board 
2nd February 2012 

 

 
§ National Fraud Initiative Update 
§ Overpayments Update 
§ Protecting the Public Purse) 
 

The meeting closed at 6.42 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 
AUDIT BOARD   29TH MARCH 2012 
     
 

AUDIT COMMISSION ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2010/11  
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr Roger Hollingworth  
Portfolio Holder Consulted  No 
Relevant Head of Service Jayne Pickering ( Exec Director)  
Wards Affected  All 
Ward Councillor Consulted None specific  
 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 

 
1.1 To enable Members to consider the Audit Commission Annual Audit 

Letter for 2010/11 and to note the action to the recommendations.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 Members note the recommendations included in the Annual Audit 
Letter 2010/11  
 
 

3. KEY ISSUES 
 

 Financial Implications    
 

3.1 None as a direct result of this report. The work undertaken to Audit the 
Accounts and prepare the Annual Audit Letter is included in the 
2011/12 Audit Commission fee of £145k.  
 
 

 Legal Implications 
 

3.2  The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 defines the legislation that 
Authorities have to comply with in preparing their accounts. 

 
 Service / Operational Implications  

 
3.3 The Annual Audit Letter as attached at Appendix 1 summarises 

findings from the 2010/11 Audit. This considers 2 elements: 
• Audit of financial statements 
• Assessment of Value for Money arrangements. 

 
3.4 A number of conclusions have been made by the Commission in 

relation to these elements. These include: 
• The Council manages risk effectively  
• The Council produces a realistic medium term financial plan  
• The savings from shared services have been delivered 
• the Council has a clear plan of addressing financial 

pressures with the shared service and transformation plans 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 
AUDIT BOARD   29TH MARCH 2012 
     
 

• there were no significant weaknesses in internal control 
• the Council needs to review the arrangements for charging 

staff time to capital schemes 
 

3.5  There were 2 errors that were identified but not deemed as material but    
           were reported to members: 
 

• Accounting treatment of the lease to Aldi for change of land 
use  

• Charging of staff time to capital projects  
 

 
3.6    There were 3 recommendations made by the Commission in the Audit 

Letter. As members are aware the Council is undertaking a 
transformation in all services to realise efficiencies whilst improving 
customer service. The recommendations reflect the need to identify 
savings and to monitor performances, both which form part of regular 
reports to Members. In addition it was recommended that the risks and 
progress on the town centre developments should be closely 
monitored. This is undertaken by the Town Centre Steering Group and 
the officer Asset Management Group. 

 
3.7 Officers will continue to work with the Audit Commission to ensure the 

Councils accounts and financial management arrangements will deliver 
compliant and informative accounts and policies in the future.  
 

 Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications  
 

3.8 None as a direct result of this report 
 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT    
 

4.1 The Financial Services risk register includes the preparation of the 
accounts and the controls in place to ensure the accounts are treated 
in compliance with accounting standards. 

 
5. APPENDICES 

 
  Appendix 1 – Audit Commission Annual Audit Letter 2010/2011 
   

.   
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:  Jayne Pickering – Exec Director Finance and Resources   
E Mail: j.pickering@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Tel:  01527-881400  

Page 6



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

1
 A
n

n
u

al
 A

u
d

it
 L

et
te

r
B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

A
u

d
it

 2
01

0/
11

 

Page 7



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

2
 C

o
n

te
n

ts
K

ey
 m

es
sa

g
es

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..3

A
ud

it 
op

in
io

n 
an

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.3

V
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..3

C
u

rr
en

t 
an

d
 f

u
tu

re
 c

h
al

le
n

g
es

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..4

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

n
d

 a
n

n
u

al
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 s

ta
te

m
en

t.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

6

O
ve

ra
ll 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 fr

om
 th

e 
au

di
t.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..6

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
in

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..7

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..8

C
lo

si
n

g
 r

em
ar

ks
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..1

0

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
 -

 F
ee

s
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
11

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 2
 -

 G
lo

ss
ar

y.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.1
2

.     

T
ra

ff
ic

 li
g

h
t 

ex
p

la
n

at
io

n
 

R
ed

   
   

   
  A

m
be

r 
   

   
   

 G
re

en
 

Page 8



K
ey

 m
es

sa
g

es
 

T
h

is
 r

ep
o

rt
 s

u
m

m
ar

is
es

 t
h

e 
fi

n
d

in
g

s 
fr

o
m

 m
y 

20
10

/1
1 

au
d

it
. M

y 
au

d
it

 c
o

m
p

ri
se

s 
tw

o
 e

le
m

en
ts

: 
 

!
 

th
e 

au
d

it
 o

f 
yo

u
r 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
; 

an
d

!
 

m
y 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

o
f 

yo
u

r 
ar

ra
n

g
em

en
ts

 t
o

 a
ch

ie
ve

 v
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 in
 y

o
u

r 
u

se
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
es

. 
I h

av
e 

in
cl

u
d

ed
 o

n
ly

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
in

 t
h

is
 r

ep
o

rt
. T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l h

as
 a

cc
ep

te
d

 t
h

es
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s.

K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

k 
O

u
r 

fi
n

d
in

g
s 

U
nq

ua
lif

ie
d 

au
di

t o
pi

ni
on

 
 

P
ro

pe
r 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 

 

A
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n
 a

n
d

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

I g
av

e 
an

 u
nq

ua
lif

ie
d 

op
in

io
n 

on
 y

ou
r 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
n 

 
30

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
11

. 
 !

 
th

er
e 

w
er

e 
no

 m
at

er
ia

l a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
; a

nd
 

!
 

th
er

e 
w

er
e 

tw
o 

ar
ea

s 
of

 u
nc

er
ta

in
ty

 th
at

 in
 to

ta
l w

er
e 

no
t m

at
er

ia
l. 

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 

I g
av

e 
an

 u
nq

ua
lif

ie
d 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 o

n 
yo

ur
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 o

n 
30

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
11

. 
!

 
M

ed
iu

m
 te

rm
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

la
nn

in
g 

is
 s

tr
on

g.
 

!
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

st
ro

ng
 b

ud
ge

t s
et

tin
g 

an
d 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

w
hi

ch
 e

na
bl

e 
pr

om
pt

 a
ct

io
n 

to
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

to
 r

es
ol

ve
 a

ny
 p

ro
bl

em
s.

!
 

T
he

re
 is

 a
 g

oo
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 C
ou

nc
il 

co
st

s.
!

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 k

ey
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l t
ar

ge
ts

 is
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e.
 

!
 

T
he

 p
la

nn
ed

 s
av

in
gs

 fr
om

 s
ha

re
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 d

el
iv

er
ed

.  
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

3
 

Page 9



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

4

C
u

rr
en

t 
an

d
 f

u
tu

re
 c

h
al

le
n

g
es

 
B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 a

n
d

 R
ed

d
it

ch
 C

o
u

n
ci

ls
 a

re
 p

ar
ti

al
ly

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
n

 a
m

b
it

io
u

s 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

o
f 

d
ev

el
o

p
in

g
 s

h
ar

ed
 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
n

d
 b

u
si

n
es

s 
tr

an
sf

o
rm

at
io

n
. T

h
is

 is
 b

ei
n

g
 c

ar
ri

ed
 o

u
t 

at
 a

 t
im

e 
o

f 
si

g
n

if
ic

an
t 

p
re

ss
u

re
 o

n
 f

in
an

ce
s 

b
o

th
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f 
th

e 
ec

o
n

o
m

ic
 d

o
w

n
tu

rn
 a

n
d

 b
ec

au
se

 o
f 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

s 
in

 g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
su

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
lo

ca
l c

o
u

n
ci

ls
. 

1
B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 D

C
 a

nd
 R

ed
di

tc
h 

B
C

 b
eg

an
 s

ha
rin

g 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

th
e 

se
ni

or
 m

an
ag

em
en

t t
ea

m
 in

 A
ug

us
t 2

00
8.

 A
fte

r 
a 

tr
ia

l p
er

io
d 

th
e 

fu
ll 

sh
ar

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

be
ga

n 
in

 A
pr

il 
20

10
. I

n 
A

ug
us

t 2
01

1 
th

e 
tim

et
ab

le
 fo

r 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
w

as
 b

ro
ug

ht
 fo

rw
ar

d 
so

 th
at

 a
ll 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
re

 p
la

nn
ed

 to
 b

e 
sh

ar
ed

 
by

 B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 a
nd

 R
ed

di
tc

h 
by

 A
pr

il 
20

12
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

t w
hi

ch
 a

im
s 

to
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 im

pr
ov

e 
op

er
at

io
na

l e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 

an
d 

cu
st

om
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 w
ill

 r
un

 a
lo

ng
si

de
 th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
sh

ar
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 g
oo

d 
bu

t t
he

 a
cc

el
er

at
ed

 
tim

et
ab

le
 w

ill
 b

e 
ve

ry
 c

ha
lle

ng
in

g 
fo

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 s
ta

ff.
 

2
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
re

sp
on

de
d 

w
el

l t
o 

th
e 

pr
es

su
re

s 
on

 it
s 

sp
en

di
ng

 b
ut

 it
 w

ill
 b

ec
om

e 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

ly
 d

iff
ic

ul
t t

o 
m

ak
e 

fu
rt

he
r 

sa
vi

ng
s.

 F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 S

pe
nd

in
g 

R
ev

ie
w

 p
la

ns
 fo

r 
sa

vi
ng

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 in
cr

ea
se

d.
 In

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

0 
un

de
rly

in
g 

co
st

 p
re

ss
ur

es
 a

nd
 

in
co

m
e 

sh
or

tfa
lls

 a
nd

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

sa
vi

ng
s 

w
er

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 to

 C
ab

in
et

 a
s:

 
!

 
 

20
10

/1
1 

 
£1

.0
88

 m
ill

io
n 

!
 

 
20

11
/1

2 
 

£1
.3

43
 m

ill
io

n 
!

 
 

20
12

/1
3 

 
£1

.7
87

 m
ill

io
n 

3
In

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

1 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l r
ec

ei
ve

d 
th

e 
tw

o 
ye

ar
 fi

na
nc

ia
l g

ra
nt

 s
et

tle
m

en
t f

ro
m

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t. 

T
hi

s 
sh

ow
ed

 a
 g

re
at

er
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

th
an

 w
as

 o
rig

in
al

ly
 

es
tim

at
ed

 a
nd

 h
as

 r
es

ul
te

d 
in

 s
av

in
gs

 th
at

 w
er

e 
or

ig
in

al
ly

 d
ue

 to
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

ov
er

 fo
ur

 y
ea

rs
 n

ow
 b

ei
ng

 m
ad

e 
ov

er
 tw

o.
 S

av
in

gs
 a

re
 n

ow
 p

la
nn

ed
 to

 b
e 

£2
.1

70
 m

ill
io

n 
in

 2
01

1/
12

 a
nd

 £
2.

53
5 

m
ill

io
n 

in
 2

01
2/

13
. S

av
in

gs
 p

la
ns

 a
re

 in
 p

la
ce

 fo
r 

20
11

/1
2 

an
d 

ar
e 

m
on

ito
re

d 
cl

os
el

y.
 T

o 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
th

er
e 

w
as

 a
 

re
co

rd
ed

 u
nd

er
 s

pe
nd

 a
ga

in
st

 b
ud

ge
t o

f £
72

1,
 0

00
 w

ith
 a

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 u

nd
er

 s
pe

nd
 o

f  
£3

09
, 0

00
 fo

r 
th

e 
fu

ll 
ye

ar
.  

4
D

et
ai

le
d 

sa
vi

ng
s 

pl
an

s 
fo

r 
20

12
/1

3 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 b

ei
ng

 w
or

ke
d 

on
 b

y 
se

rv
ic

e 
m

an
ag

er
s.

 A
ll 

de
ta

ile
d 

sa
vi

ng
s 

pl
an

s 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

th
e 

st
ar

t o
f 

th
e 

20
12

/1
3 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r.
 

5
O

th
er

 fu
tu

re
 c

ha
lle

ng
es

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

T
hi

s 
is

 a
 m

aj
or

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
t a

 ti
m

e 
of

 e
co

no
m

ic
 s

lo
w

do
w

n 
an

d 
so

 c
ar

rie
s 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l r

is
ks

. 

  

Page 10



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

5

 R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s

R
1

C
o

u
n

ci
l m

em
b

er
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 e
n

su
re

 
!

 
A

ll 
sa

vi
ng

s 
fo

r 
20

12
/1

3 
ar

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

be
fo

re
 th

e 
st

ar
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l y
ea

r.
 

R
2

C
o

u
n

ci
l m

em
b

er
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 e
n

su
re

!
 

C
ur

re
nt

 C
ou

nc
il 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 is
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

pr
oc

es
s.

 

R
3

C
o

u
n

ci
l m

em
b

er
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 e
n

su
re

!
 

R
is

ks
 a

nd
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

of
 th

e 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 a

re
 m

on
ito

re
d 

cl
os

el
y 

to
 m

in
im

is
e 

ris
k 

to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 

  

Page 11



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

6
 F

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 

an
n

u
al

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 s
ta

te
m

en
t  

 
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

n
d

 a
n

n
u

al
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 s

ta
te

m
en

t 
ar

e 
im

p
o

rt
an

t 
m

ea
n

s 
b

y 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l a

cc
o

u
n

ts
 f

o
r 

it
s 

st
ew

ar
d

sh
ip

 o
f 

p
u

b
lic

 f
u

n
d

s.
 

O
ve

ra
ll 

co
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
au

d
it

 

6
I c

on
cl

ud
ed

 th
at

 th
er

e 
w

er
e 

no
 m

at
er

ia
l e

rr
or

s 
in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 a
nd

 I 
is

su
ed

 a
n 

un
qu

al
ifi

ed
 o

pi
ni

on
 o

n 
30

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
11

. 

7
T

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

sh
ow

ed
 a

 s
ur

pl
us

 o
f £

93
0,

00
0 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 a
 r

ev
is

ed
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

su
rp

lu
s 

of
 £

75
,0

00
. T

hi
s 

im
pr

ov
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ro

se
 fo

r 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 r

ea
so

ns
 w

ith
 th

e 
on

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 v
ar

ia
nc

e 
be

in
g 

a 
V

A
T

 r
ec

ei
pt

 o
f £

15
4,

00
0.

  

8
T

he
re

 w
er

e 
tw

o 
er

ro
rs

 in
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 w

hi
ch

 w
er

e 
no

t m
at

er
ia

l b
ut

 w
er

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
no

ug
h 

th
at

 I 
re

po
rt

ed
 th

em
 p

rio
r 

to
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 b

ei
ng

 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l. 

9
B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 D

is
tr

ic
t C

ou
nc

il 
ow

ne
d 

la
nd

 o
n 

w
hi

ch
 it

 g
ra

nt
ed

 a
 1

75
 y

ea
r 

le
as

e 
to

 A
ld

i s
up

er
m

ar
ke

ts
. I

n 
re

tu
rn

 fo
r 

ch
an

gi
ng

 th
e 

la
nd

 u
se

 fr
om

 
in

du
st

ria
l t

o 
re

ta
il 

A
ld

i p
ai

d 
a 

£4
00

k 
pr

em
iu

m
 to

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l. 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

tr
ea

te
d 

th
is

 s
um

 a
s 

a 
ca

pi
ta

l r
ec

ei
pt

 in
 th

e 
ye

ar
. N

or
m

al
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
pr

ac
tic

e 
w

ou
ld

 m
ea

n 
th

at
 th

e 
pr

em
iu

m
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 b
ro

ug
ht

 in
to

 in
co

m
e 

ov
er

 th
e 

pe
rio

d 
of

 th
e 

le
as

e 
(1

75
 y

ea
rs

).
 T

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

w
er

e 
no

t a
m

en
de

d 
fo

r 
th

is
 e

rr
or

, 
th

er
ef

or
e 

in
co

m
e 

in
 th

e 
C

IE
S

 a
nd

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l f

un
d 

ba
la

nc
e 

w
er

e 
ov

er
st

at
ed

 b
y 

£4
00

k.
 I 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 th

at
, s

in
ce

 th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

, t
he

 la
nd

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
so

ld
 

an
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
th

e 
pr

em
iu

m
 w

ill
 b

e 
tr

ea
te

d 
as

 a
 c

ap
ita

l r
ec

ei
pt

 in
 2

01
1/

12
 a

nd
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 fi

na
nc

e 
ot

he
r 

pr
oj

ec
ts

. 

10
 

W
hi

ls
t I

 d
is

ag
re

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
tr

ea
tm

en
t o

f t
hi

s 
re

ce
ip

t i
n 

20
10

/1
1,

 th
e 

is
su

e 
w

as
 n

ot
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t e
no

ug
h 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
 m

e 
fr

om
 g

iv
in

g 
an

 u
nq

ua
lif

ie
d 

op
in

io
n.

 

11
 

E
ac

h 
ye

ar
, a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f i
ts

 b
ud

ge
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

s,
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
id

en
tif

ie
s 

an
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f s
ta

ff 
sa

la
rie

s 
th

at
 it

 w
ill

 c
ap

ita
lis

e 
as

 o
ve

rh
ea

ds
 to

 c
ap

ita
l p

ro
je

ct
s.

 
T

hi
s 

is
 to

 ta
ke

 a
cc

ou
nt

 o
f t

he
 fa

ct
 th

at
, i

n 
its

 v
ie

w
, s

om
e 

of
 th

e 
tim

e 
sp

en
t b

y 
st

af
f i

s 
sp

en
t o

n 
ac

qu
iri

ng
 c

ap
ita

l a
ss

et
s.

 H
ow

ev
er

 n
at

io
na

l g
ui

da
nc

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 p
ro

hi
bi

ts
 th

e 
ca

pi
ta

lis
at

io
n 

of
 s

uc
h 

ov
er

he
ad

s.
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
ca

pi
ta

lis
ed

 h
as

 to
 b

e 
di

re
ct

ly
 a

ttr
ib

ut
ab

le
 to

 b
rin

gi
ng

 a
n 

as
se

t i
nt

o 
us

e 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f t

he
 c

ap
ita

l p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

an
d 

gr
an

t a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

. 

12
 

T
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
w

er
e 

am
en

de
d 

to
 r

em
ov

e 
th

e 
£1

38
k 

in
iti

al
ly

 c
ap

ita
lis

ed
 in

 2
01

0/
11

 a
nd

 c
ha

rg
e 

it 
to

 th
e 

re
ve

nu
e 

ac
co

un
t. 

Page 12



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

7

13
 

I r
eq

ue
st

ed
 a

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 a

ss
et

 b
al

an
ce

s 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
si

m
ila

r 
ca

pi
ta

lis
ed

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
in

 e
ar

lie
r 

ye
ar

s 
ha

ve
 r

es
ul

te
d 

in
 a

 m
at

er
ia

lly
  

in
co

rr
ec

t b
al

an
ce

 o
f P

ro
pe

rt
y,

 P
la

nt
 a

nd
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t. 
T

hi
s 

sh
ow

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 w
hi

ch
 r

em
ai

ne
d 

on
 th

e 
ba

la
nc

e 
sh

ee
t a

fte
r 

re
va

lu
at

io
n 

an
d 

de
pr

ec
ia

tio
n 

am
ou

nt
ed

 to
 £

23
8k

. N
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t w

as
 m

ad
e 

fo
r 

th
is

, t
he

re
fo

re
 th

e 
as

se
t b

al
an

ce
 w

as
 o

ve
rs

ta
te

d 
by

 th
is

 a
m

ou
nt

. W
hi

ls
t I

 d
is

ag
re

ed
 w

ith
 

th
is

 tr
ea

tm
en

t o
f c

ap
ita

lis
ed

 s
al

ar
ie

s 
th

e 
is

su
e 

w
as

 n
ot

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t e

no
ug

h 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 m
e 

fr
om

 g
iv

in
g 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
op

in
io

n.
 

14
 

T
he

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 (

R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 F

in
an

ce
) 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

a 
re

vi
se

d 
sy

st
em

 fo
r 

re
co

rd
in

g 
st

af
f t

im
e 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
al

l r
el

ev
an

t s
ta

ff 
co

st
s 

to
 

be
 c

ap
ita

lis
ed

 in
 fu

tu
re

. 

 S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
in

 in
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l

 I 
di

d 
no

t i
de

nt
ify

 a
ny

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
in

 y
ou

r 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

.  

  

Page 13



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

8

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 
I c

o
n

si
d

er
ed

 w
h

et
h

er
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l i

s 
m

an
ag

in
g

 a
n

d
 u

si
n

g
 it

s 
m

o
n

ey
, t

im
e 

an
d

 p
eo

p
le

 t
o

 d
el

iv
er

 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

. I
 a

ss
es

se
d

 y
o

u
r 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
g

ai
n

st
 t

h
e 

cr
it

er
ia

 s
p

ec
if

ie
d

 b
y 

th
e 

A
u

d
it

 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 h
av

e 
re

p
o

rt
ed

 t
h

e 
o

u
tc

o
m

e 
as

 t
h

e 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 (
V

F
M

) 
co

n
cl

u
si

o
n

. 

I a
ss

es
s 

yo
ur

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

ec
on

om
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 y

ou
r 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
ga

in
st

 tw
o 

cr
ite

ria
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

by
 th

e 
 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. M

y 
ov

er
al

l c
on

cl
us

io
n 

is
 th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
ad

eq
ua

te
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 s

ec
ur

e,
 e

co
no

m
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 it

s 
us

e 
of

 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

  

M
y 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 o

n 
ea

ch
 o

f t
he

 tw
o 

ar
ea

s 
is

 s
et

 o
ut

 b
el

ow
. 

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 c
ri

te
ri

a 
an

d
 k

ey
 m

es
sa

g
es

 

C
ri

te
ri

o
n

K
ey

 m
es

sa
g

es
 

1.
 F

in
an

ci
al

 r
es

ili
en

ce
  

T
h

e 
o

rg
an

is
at

io
n

 h
as

 p
ro

p
er

 a
rr

an
g

em
en

ts
 in

 
p

la
ce

 t
o

 s
ec

u
re

 f
in

an
ci

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

.

F
oc

us
 fo

r 
20

10
/1

1:
  

T
he

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
ha

s 
ro

bu
st

 s
ys

te
m

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

to
 m

an
ag

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
fin

an
ci

al
 r

is
ks

 
an

d 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
, a

nd
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

a 
st

ab
le

 
fin

an
ci

al
 p

os
iti

on
 th

at
 e

na
bl

es
 it

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 
op

er
at

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
fo

re
se

ea
bl

e 
fu

tu
re

. 

 

T
he

 d
et

ai
le

d 
an

nu
al

 b
ud

ge
t w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d 

an
d 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 in
 J

an
ua

ry
/F

eb
ru

ar
y 

of
 2

01
1 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
a 

re
po

rt
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

by
 th

e 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 F

in
an

ce
 w

hi
ch

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
un

av
oi

da
bl

e 
pr

es
su

re
s 

fo
r 

sa
vi

ng
s 

an
d 

hi
gh

 c
ap

ita
l b

id
s.

 T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 g
iv

es
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fo
r 

m
em

be
rs

’ d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g.
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

pr
od

uc
es

 r
ea

lis
tic

 m
ed

iu
m

 te
rm

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
la

ns
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 m
od

ifi
ed

 a
s 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
ch

an
ge

. S
av

in
gs

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

0 
of

 o
ve

r 
£4

 m
ill

io
n 

to
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

in
 th

e 
pe

rio
d 

20
10

/1
1 

to
 

20
12

/1
3 

ha
d 

to
 b

e 
am

en
de

d 
af

te
r 

th
e 

tw
o 

ye
ar

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t g

ra
nt

 s
et

tle
m

en
t. 

S
av

in
gs

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

br
ou

gh
t f

or
w

ar
d 

an
d 

no
w

 S
av

in
gs

 o
f £

4.
7m

ill
io

n 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
in

 th
e 

pe
rio

d 
20

11
/1

2 
to

 
20

12
/1

3.
 Id

en
tif

ie
d 

sa
vi

ng
s 

ar
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
re

vi
se

d 
bu

dg
et

s.
  

M
em

be
rs

 r
ec

ei
ve

 q
ua

rt
er

ly
 r

ep
or

ts
 s

ho
w

in
g 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 r
ev

is
ed

 b
ud

ge
ts

. 
S

av
in

gs
 p

la
ns

 a
re

 m
on

ito
re

d 
cl

os
el

y.
 T

he
re

 is
 q

ua
rt

er
ly

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
to

 m
em

be
rs

 o
f p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

ag
ai

ns
t b

ud
ge

ts
. 

 

Page 14



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

9

C
ri

te
ri

o
n

K
ey

 m
es

sa
g

es
 

T
he

re
 is

 a
 r

ob
us

t r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

 s
o 

th
at

 fi
na

nc
ia

l r
is

ks
 a

re
 id

en
tif

ie
d,

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 a

nd
 

m
on

ito
re

d.
 

2.
 S

ec
u

ri
n

g
 e

co
n

o
m

y 
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

 a
n

d
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s

T
h

e 
o

rg
an

is
at

io
n

 h
as

 p
ro

p
er

 a
rr

an
g

em
en

ts
 

fo
r 

ch
al

le
n

g
in

g
 h

o
w

 it
 s

ec
u

re
s 

ec
o

n
o

m
y,

 
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

n
es

s.
 

 F
oc

us
 fo

r 
20

10
/1

1:
  

T
he

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
is

 p
rio

rit
is

in
g 

its
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 
w

ith
in

 ti
gh

te
r 

bu
dg

et
s,

 fo
r 

ex
am

pl
e 

by
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 
co

st
 r

ed
uc

tio
ns

 a
nd

 b
y 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tiv

ity
. 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

a 
go

od
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f i

ts
 c

os
ts

 (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

su
pp

or
t c

os
ts

) 
sh

ow
n 

by
 th

e 
th

or
ou

gh
 r

ev
ie

w
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
in

 2
00

9/
10

. C
os

ts
 a

re
 a

na
ly

se
d 

so
 th

at
 a

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 v
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

 c
an

 b
e 

m
ad

e.
 A

ct
iv

ity
 d

riv
er

s 
fo

r 
ea

ch
 s

er
vi

ce
 h

av
e 

be
en

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 s

av
in

gs
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 s

ha
re

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l t

ar
ge

ts
 a

re
 c

lo
se

ly
 m

on
ito

re
d 

an
d 

re
po

rt
ed

 to
 m

em
be

rs
 o

n 
a 

qu
ar

te
rly

 b
as

is
. F

or
 

20
10

/1
1,

 5
9 

pe
r 

ce
nt

 o
f p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 (
P

I)
 h

ad
 m

et
 th

ei
r 

ta
rg

et
. T

hi
s 

is
 a

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
 

fr
om

 6
9 

pe
r 

ce
nt

 in
 2

00
9/

10
. H

ow
ev

er
, a

 fu
rt

he
r 

14
 p

er
 c

en
t o

f P
Is

 h
ad

 o
nl

y 
na

rr
ow

ly
 m

is
se

d 
th

ei
r 

ta
rg

et
s.

 

T
he

 b
us

in
es

s 
tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
ha

s 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
de

liv
er

 s
ub

st
an

tia
l s

av
in

gs
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

e 
cu

st
om

er
 fo

cu
s 

bu
t c

ur
re

nt
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
w

hi
ls

t b
us

in
es

s 
tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
ta

ke
s 

pl
ac

e.
 

T
he

 s
ha

re
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

ha
s 

pr
oc

ee
de

d 
ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 p

la
n.

 S
o 

fa
r 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 

ar
e 

sh
ar

ed
: p

ay
ro

ll,
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t, 

co
m

m
un

ity
 s

af
et

y/
C

C
T

V
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 e
le

ct
or

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 IC
T

, 
co

rp
or

at
e 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 le
is

ur
e 

se
rv

ic
es

. I
n 

ad
di

tio
n 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

no
w

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 w
id

e 
sh

ar
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

 h
os

te
d 

by
 B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 D

is
tr

ic
t c

ou
nc

il.
 T

he
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
tim

et
ab

le
 h

as
 n

ow
 b

ee
n 

re
vi

se
d 

so
 th

at
 a

ll 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
sh

ar
ed

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

12
. 

T
he

re
 a

re
 d

et
ai

le
d 

sa
vi

ng
s 

pl
an

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 m
on

ito
re

d 
on

 a
 r

eg
ul

ar
 b

as
is

. T
he

se
 o

ve
ra

ll 
pl

an
ne

d 
sa

vi
ng

s 
of

 £
1.

17
9 

m
ill

io
n 

w
er

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 in

 2
01

0/
11

.B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

’s
 s

ha
re

 o
f t

he
se

 s
av

in
gs

 
w

as
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
£5

50
,0

00
. 

T
he

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

s 
go

in
g 

ah
ea

d 
ag

ai
ns

t a
 b

ac
kg

ro
un

d 
of

 n
at

io
na

l e
co

no
m

ic
 

sl
ow

do
w

n.
 T

hi
s 

m
ak

es
 it

 h
ig

he
r 

ris
k 

th
an

 w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

be
en

 th
e 

ca
se

 in
 b

et
te

r 
ec

on
om

ic
 ti

m
es

. 
R

is
ks

 a
nd

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

m
on

ito
re

d 
ca

re
fu

lly
. 

 

Page 15



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

10

C
lo

si
n

g
 r

em
ar

ks
 

I h
av

e 
di

sc
us

se
d 

an
d 

ag
re

ed
 th

is
 le

tte
r 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

an
d 

th
e 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 R
es

ou
rc

es
. I

 w
ill

 p
re

se
nt

 th
is

 le
tte

r 
at

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
n 

15
 M

ar
ch

  2
01

2 
an

d 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 c

op
ie

s 
to

 a
ll 

B
oa

rd
 m

em
be

rs
. 

F
ur

th
er

 d
et

ai
le

d 
fin

di
ng

s,
 c

on
cl

us
io

ns
 a

nd
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

s 
co

ve
re

d 
by

 o
ur

 a
ud

it 
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

re
po

rt
s 

is
su

ed
 to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
. 

 R
ep

o
rt

D
at

e 
is

su
ed

 

A
ud

it 
P

la
n 

M
ay

 2
01

1 

A
ud

it 
op

in
io

n 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

11
 

V
F

M
 C

on
cl

us
io

n 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

11
 

D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

co
m

pa
ris

on
s 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

11
 

A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
11

 

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ta
ke

n 
a 

po
si

tiv
e 

an
d 

co
ns

tr
uc

tiv
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 o

ur
 a

ud
it.

 I 
w

is
h 

to
 th

an
k 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

st
af

f f
or

 th
ei

r 
su

pp
or

t a
nd

 c
o-

op
er

at
io

n 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

au
di

t. 

E
liz

ab
et

h 
C

av
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t A
ud

ito
r 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

11
 

 

Page 16



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

11

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
 -

 F
ee

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
ct

u
al

P
ro

p
o

se
d

V
ar

ia
n

ce

S
ca

le
 fe

e 
11

2,
29

0 
11

2,
29

0 
0 

G
ra

nt
 c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

 tb
c*

 
 2

4,
00

0 
0 

T
o

ta
l

14
5,

00
0

14
5,

00
0

0

 *a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 d

ra
fti

ng
, t

he
 g

ra
nt

s 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
w

or
k 

is
 s

til
l o

ng
oi

ng
. 

 

Page 17



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 2
 -

 G
lo

ss
ar

y 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

n
n

u
al

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 s
ta

te
m

en
t

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

is
 a

bo
ut

 h
ow

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t b

od
ie

s 
en

su
re

 th
at

 th
ey

 a
re

 d
oi

ng
 th

e 
rig

ht
 th

in
gs

, i
n 

th
e 

rig
ht

 w
ay

, f
or

 th
e 

rig
ht

 p
eo

pl
e,

 in
 a

 ti
m

el
y,

 
in

cl
us

iv
e,

 o
pe

n,
 h

on
es

t a
nd

 a
cc

ou
nt

ab
le

 m
an

ne
r.

 

It 
co

m
pr

is
es

 th
e 

sy
st

em
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

es
se

s,
 c

ul
tu

re
s 

an
d 

va
lu

es
, b

y 
w

hi
ch

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t b

od
ie

s 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 a

nd
 c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
an

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
w

hi
ch

 th
ey

 
ac

co
un

t t
o,

 e
ng

ag
e 

w
ith

 a
nd

 w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
, l

ea
d 

th
ei

r 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
.  

T
he

 a
nn

ua
l g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
st

at
em

en
t i

s 
a 

pu
bl

ic
 r

ep
or

t b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

on
 th

e 
ex

te
nt

 to
 w

hi
ch

 it
 c

om
pl

ie
s 

w
ith

 it
s 

ow
n 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

co
de

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 h

ow
 

it 
ha

s 
m

on
ito

re
d 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 it
s 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
ye

ar
, a

nd
 o

n 
an

y 
pl

an
ne

d 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 th
e 

co
m

in
g 

pe
rio

d.
 

A
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n

O
n 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, I
 m

us
t g

iv
e 

m
y 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

:  
!

 
w

he
th

er
 th

ey
 g

iv
e 

a 
tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
os

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
ite

d 
bo

dy
 a

nd
 it

s 
sp

en
di

ng
 a

nd
 in

co
m

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 in

 q
ue

st
io

n;
 a

nd
  

!
 

w
he

th
er

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

re
pa

re
d 

pr
op

er
ly

, f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

ru
le

s.
  

O
p

in
io

n

If 
I a

gr
ee

 th
at

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 g
iv

e 
a 

tr
ue

 a
nd

 fa
ir 

vi
ew

, I
 is

su
e 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
op

in
io

n.
 I 

is
su

e 
a 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 o
pi

ni
on

 if
: 

!
 

I f
in

d 
th

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

 d
o 

no
t g

iv
e 

a 
tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
; o

r 
!

 
I c

an
no

t c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 th
e 

st
at

em
en

ts
 g

iv
e 

a 
tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
. 

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 

T
he

 a
ud

ito
r’s

 c
on

cl
us

io
n 

on
 w

he
th

er
 th

e 
au

di
te

d 
bo

dy
 h

as
 p

ut
 in

 p
la

ce
 p

ro
pe

r 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
se

cu
rin

g 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 it
s 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
cr

ite
ria

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
.  

If 
I f

in
d 

th
at

 th
e 

au
di

te
d 

bo
dy

 h
ad

 a
de

qu
at

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
, I

 is
su

e 
an

 u
nq

ua
lif

ie
d 

co
nc

lu
si

on
. I

f I
 fi

nd
 th

at
 it

 d
id

 n
ot

, I
 is

su
e 

a 
qu

al
ifi

ed
 c

on
cl

us
io

n.
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

12
 

Page 18



If 
yo

u 
re

qu
ire

 a
 c

op
y 

of
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t i

n 
an

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

fo
rm

at
 o

r 
in

 a
 la

ng
ua

ge
 o

th
er

 th
an

 E
ng

lis
h,

 p
le

as
e 

ca
ll:

  
08

44
 7

98
 7

07
0 

©
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 2
01

2.
 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 P

ub
lis

hi
ng

 T
ea

m
. 

Im
ag

e 
co

py
rig

ht
 ©

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. 

 T
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 A

ud
ite

d 
B

od
ie

s 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 e

xp
la

in
s 

th
e 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
of

 a
ud

ito
rs

 
an

d 
of

 th
e 

au
di

te
d 

bo
dy

. R
ep

or
ts

 p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

re
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 to
 n

on
-e

xe
cu

tiv
e 

di
re

ct
or

s,
 m

em
be

rs
 o

r 
of

fic
er

s.
 T

he
y 

ar
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r 

th
e 

so
le

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
ite

d 
bo

dy
. A

ud
ito

rs
 a

cc
ep

t n
o 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

: 
!

 
an

y 
di

re
ct

or
/m

em
be

r 
or

 o
ffi

ce
r 

in
 th

ei
r 

in
di

vi
du

al
 c

ap
ac

ity
; o

r 
 

!
 

an
y 

th
ird

 p
ar

ty
.  

           

 
 w

w
w

.a
u

d
it

-c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

.g
o

v.
u

k
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ja

n
u

ar
y 

20
12

 

  

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 
AUDIT BOARD   29TH MARCH 2012 
     
 

AUDIT COMMISSION ANNUAL GRANTS REPORT 2010/11  
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr Roger Hollingworth  
Portfolio Holder Consulted  No  
Relevant Head of Service Jayne Pickering ( Exec Director)  
Wards Affected  All 
Ward Councillor Consulted None specific  
 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 

 
1.1 To advise the Audit Board of the Certification of Claims and Returns – 

Annual Report, that were undertaken during 2009/10 by the Audit 
Commission. 

  
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That Members consider the Certification of Claims and Returns – 
Annual Report and request officers to respond to the 
recommendations following the Board meeting 
 

3. KEY ISSUES 
 

 Financial Implications    
 

3.1 A review is undertaken on all grant related claims that the Council 
submits. There are 3 claims that are subject to External Audit; Disabled 
Facilities (limited testing due to value), Housing Benefit Claim and 
National Non Domestic Rates claim (both full reviews due to value).  
The cost associated with the Audit is £19k.  

 
 

 Legal Implications 
 

3.2  The Council has a statutory responsibility to include an audit certificate 
alongside certain grant claims due to the scheme terms and conditions. 

 
 
 Service / Operational Implications  

 
3.3 The Audit Commission have recognised that there have been improved 

arrangements in relation to completion of grant claims and returns and 
cooperate well with their auditors. 

 
3.4 A number of recommendations have been made by the commission in 

previous years and progress against these are included within the 
report. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 21



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 
AUDIT BOARD   29TH MARCH 2012 
     
 

 
3.5 Housing and Council Tax Benefits Claim 

• This claim was subjected to a full review as it was valued at £17 
million. 

• No overpayments were identified within the Housing Benefit 
claim. 6 cases of minor underpayments were found. 

• A total error of £41 was found which would have created a £12k 
overpayment. Despite this being a proportionately small level of 
error on a claim of £5.5m a qualification letter was issued as the 
guidelines state any overpayment error found results in a 
qualification of the claim 

 
3.6 National Non Domestic Claim 

• This claim was valued at £23.3 million was also subjected to a 
full review. There was a significant improvement in the working 
papers to support the claim and one amendment was made. The 
claim was certified. 

 
3.7 Disabled Facilities Grant 

• A limited review was undertaken on this claim, and no concerns 
were raised. The claim was certified 

 
 

 Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications  
 

3.8 None as a direct result of this report 
 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT    
 

4.1 The Financial Services risk register includes the preparation of the 
accounts and the controls in place to ensure the accounts are treated 
in compliance with accounting standards. 

 
5. APPENDICES 

 
  Appendix 1 – Audit Commission Certification of Claims and Returns  

     Annual Report 2010/2011 
   

.   
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:  Jayne Pickering – Exec Director Finance and Resources   
E Mail: j.pickering@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Tel:  01527-881400  

Page 22



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
– 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
1

 C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d

 
re

tu
rn

s 
- 

an
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 
B

ro
m

sg
o

ve
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

ci
l

A
u

d
it

 2
01

0/
11

 

Page 23



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
– 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
2

C
o

n
te

n
ts

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

3

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

m
y 

20
10

/1
1 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
4

R
es

u
lt

s 
o

f 
20

10
/1

1 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n

 w
o

rk
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.6

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 o

n
 p

re
vi

o
u

s 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..8

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.9

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 f

ee
s

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.1

0
      

Page 24



In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

L
o

ca
l a

u
th

o
ri

ti
es

 c
la

im
 la

rg
e 

su
m

s 
o

f 
p

u
b

lic
 m

o
n

ey
 in

 g
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 s

u
b

si
d

ie
s 

fr
o

m
 c

en
tr

al
 

g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
an

d
 o

th
er

 g
ra

n
t-

p
ay

in
g

 b
o

d
ie

s 
an

d
 a

re
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 r
et

u
rn

s 
p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 t

o
 g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

. M
y 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

vi
d

es
 a

ss
u

ra
n

ce
 t

o
 

g
ra

n
t-

p
ay

in
g

 b
o

d
ie

s 
th

at
 c

la
im

s 
fo

r 
g

ra
n

ts
 a

n
d

 s
u

b
si

d
ie

s 
ar

e 
m

ad
e 

p
ro

p
er

ly
 o

r 
th

at
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 

in
 f

in
an

ci
al

 r
et

u
rn

s 
is

 r
el

ia
b

le
. T

h
is

 r
ep

o
rt

 s
u

m
m

ar
is

es
 t

h
e 

o
u

tc
o

m
es

 o
f 

m
y 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 
yo

u
r 

20
10

/1
1 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d

 r
et

u
rn

s.
 

U
nd

er
 s

ec
tio

n 
28

 o
f t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 A
ct

 1
99

8,
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 m
ay

, a
t t

he
 r

eq
ue

st
 o

f a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s,

 m
ak

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
ce

rt
ify

in
g 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

be
ca

us
e 

sc
he

m
e 

te
rm

s 
an

d 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

a 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t. 
W

he
re

 s
uc

h 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

re
 m

ad
e,

 c
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
in

st
ru

ct
io

ns
 

is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 to
 it

s 
au

di
to

rs
 s

et
 o

ut
 th

e 
w

or
k 

au
di

to
rs

 m
us

t d
o 

be
fo

re
 th

ey
 g

iv
e 

th
ei

r 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
te

. T
he

 w
or

k 
re

qu
ire

d 
va

rie
s 

ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 
th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 th

e 
cl

ai
m

 o
r 

re
tu

rn
 a

nd
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t d

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
r 

gr
an

t-
pa

yi
ng

 b
od

y,
 b

ut
 in

 b
ro

ad
 te

rm
s:

 
!

 
fo

r 
cl

ai
m

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
be

lo
w

 £
12

5,
00

0 
th

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 d

oe
s 

no
t m

ak
e 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

tio
n 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 I 
w

as
 n

ot
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 w
or

k;
 

!
 

fo
r 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

£1
25

,0
00

 a
nd

 £
50

0,
00

0,
 I 

un
de

rt
oo

k 
lim

ite
d 

te
st

s 
to

 a
gr

ee
 fo

rm
 e

nt
rie

s 
to

 u
nd

er
ly

in
g 

re
co

rd
s,

 b
ut

 d
id

 n
ot

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 

an
y 

te
st

in
g 

of
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 o
f e

xp
en

di
tu

re
; a

nd
 

!
 

fo
r 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

ov
er

 £
50

0,
00

0 
I p

la
nn

ed
 a

nd
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 m
y 

w
or

k 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

tio
n 

in
st

ru
ct

io
n 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

l 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t f
or

 th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
cl

ai
m

 o
r 

re
tu

rn
 to

 d
ec

id
e 

w
he

th
er

 o
r 

no
t t

o 
pl

ac
e 

re
lia

nc
e 

on
 it

. D
ep

en
di

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
ou

tc
om

e 
of

 th
at

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t, 
I u

nd
er

to
ok

 te
st

in
g 

as
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 to

 a
gr

ee
 fo

rm
 e

nt
rie

s 
to

 u
nd

er
ly

in
g 

re
co

rd
s 

an
d 

te
st

 th
e 

el
ig

ib
ili

ty
 o

f e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 o
r 

da
ta

.  

C
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

am
en

de
d 

w
he

re
 I 

ag
re

e 
w

ith
 y

ou
r 

of
fic

er
s 

th
at

 th
is

 is
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

. M
y 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
 m

ay
 a

ls
o 

re
fe

r 
to

 a
 q

ua
lif

ic
at

io
n 

le
tte

r 
w

he
re

 
th

er
e 

is
 d

is
ag

re
em

en
t o

r 
un

ce
rt

ai
nt

y,
 o

r 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 c

om
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

 s
ch

em
e 

te
rm

s 
an

d 
co

nd
iti

on
s.

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
– 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
3

 

Page 25



S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

m
y 

20
10

/1
1 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

 
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l h

as
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 w
el

l i
n

 p
re

p
ar

in
g

 c
la

im
s 

an
d

 r
et

u
rn

s.
 

T
hi

s 
ye

ar
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
fu

rt
he

r 
im

pr
ov

ed
 it

s 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

th
at

 r
eq

ui
re

 c
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
ar

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 
th

e 
gr

an
t p

ay
in

g 
bo

di
es

' r
el

ev
an

t t
er

m
s 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s.
  O

ffi
ce

rs
 c

o-
op

er
at

e 
w

el
l w

ith
 e

xt
er

na
l a

ud
it 

so
 th

at
 c

la
im

s 
ca

n 
be

 a
ud

ite
d 

by
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
de

ad
lin

es
.  

W
e 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 to
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f e

xt
er

na
l a

ud
it 

tim
e 

sp
en

t o
n 

th
es

e 
cl

ai
m

s 
an

d 
th

us
 th

e 
fe

e 
ch

ar
ge

d.
   

M
y 

w
or

k 
ga

ve
 r

is
e 

to
 a

m
en

dm
en

t o
f o

nl
y 

on
e 

of
 th

e 
th

re
e 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1.
 A

 q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

n 
le

tte
r 

w
as

 is
su

ed
 o

n 
on

e 
cl

ai
m

. 
 T

ab
le

 1
: 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

20
10

/1
1 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
cl

ai
m

s 
an

d
 r

et
u

rn
s 

ce
rt

if
ie

d
 

T
ot

al
 v

al
ue

 o
f c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
ce

rt
ifi

ed
 

£4
0,

65
7,

40
1 

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
am

en
de

d 
du

e 
to

 e
rr

or
s 

1 

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
w

he
re

 I 
is

su
ed

 a
 q

ua
lif

ic
at

io
n 

le
tte

r 
be

ca
us

e 
th

er
e 

w
as

 d
is

ag
re

em
en

t o
r 

un
ce

rt
ai

nt
y 

ov
er

 th
e 

co
nt

en
t 

of
 th

e 
cl

ai
m

 o
r 

re
tu

rn
 o

r 
sc

he
m

e 
te

rm
s 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
ha

d 
no

t b
ee

n 
co

m
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

 
1 

T
ot

al
 c

os
t o

f c
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

£1
8,

43
4 

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
– 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
4

 

Page 26



H
o

u
si

n
g

 B
en

ef
it

s 
C

la
im

 

T
he

 H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
its

 C
la

im
 h

as
 a

 v
al

ue
 o

f o
ve

r 
£1

7m
ill

io
n.

  T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 h

as
 a

gr
ee

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t f
or

 W
or

k 
an

d 
P

en
si

on
s 

a 
pr

es
cr

ip
tiv

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 w
or

k 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

us
 to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
e 

cl
ai

m
.  

I t
es

t a
 s

am
pl

e 
of

 2
0 

ho
us

in
g 

be
ne

fit
s 

ca
se

s 
an

d 
a 

fu
rt

he
r 

20
 o

f c
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

ca
se

s 
an

d 
th

en
 a

 fu
rt

he
r 

sa
m

pl
e 

of
 4

0 
ca

se
s 

if 
er

ro
rs

 a
re

 fo
un

d 
in

 m
y 

in
iti

al
 s

am
pl

e.
   

 
!

 
H

ou
si

ng
 b

en
ef

it 
- 

in
 m

y 
te

st
in

g 
of

 6
0 

ca
se

s 
  I

 fo
un

d 
6 

ca
se

s 
w

he
re

 b
en

ef
it 

ha
d 

be
en

 u
nd

er
pa

id
, i

n 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

du
e 

to
 in

co
rr

ec
t i

nc
om

e 
fig

ur
es

 b
ei

ng
 

us
ed

.  
T

he
 c

la
im

 is
 n

ot
 a

dj
us

te
d 

fo
r 

un
de

rp
ay

m
en

t o
f s

ub
si

dy
.  

In
co

rr
ec

t i
nc

om
e 

fig
ur

es
 b

ei
ng

 u
se

d 
is

 a
 s

im
ila

r 
er

ro
r 

to
 th

at
 fo

un
d 

in
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

ye
ar

s.
   

!
 

C
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

- 
in

 m
y 

te
st

in
g 

of
 6

0 
ca

se
s 

I f
ou

nd
 9

 e
rr

or
s.

  T
hr

ee
 e

rr
or

s 
re

la
te

d 
to

 u
nd

er
pa

ym
en

t o
f s

ub
si

dy
 d

ue
 to

 in
co

rr
ec

t i
nc

om
e 

fig
ur

es
 b

ei
ng

 
us

ed
.  

T
he

 r
em

ai
nd

er
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

a 
to

ta
l e

rr
or

 o
f £

41
, w

hi
ch

 w
as

 e
xt

ra
po

la
te

d 
to

 £
12

k,
 o

ve
r 

a 
to

ta
l c

el
l v

al
ue

 o
f o

ve
r 

£5
.5

m
.  

T
hi

s 
is

 c
le

ar
ly

 a
 

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

ly
 s

m
al

l l
ev

el
 o

f e
rr

or
 a

nd
 w

el
l w

ith
in

 th
e 

no
rm

al
 to

le
ra

nc
e 

of
 e

rr
or

 w
e 

ex
pe

ct
 in

 a
 c

la
im

 o
f t

hi
s 

ty
pe

. 

 N
at

io
n

al
 N

o
n

 d
o

m
es

ti
c 

ra
te

s 

In
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 y

ea
r 

I w
as

 u
na

bl
e 

to
 r

el
y 

on
 th

e 
co

nt
ro

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t d

ue
 to

 th
e 

ab
se

nc
e 

of
 a

 r
el

ia
bl

e 
au

di
t t

ra
il 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
cl

ai
m

.  
T

hi
s 

ye
ar

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 h

av
e 

im
pr

ov
ed

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 w
ith

 m
uc

h 
im

pr
ov

ed
 w

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s.
  O

ne
 a

m
en

dm
en

t w
as

 m
ad

e 
to

 th
e 

cl
ai

m
.  

 

Lo
ss

es
 in

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

re
po

rt
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

cl
ai

m
 h

as
 fa

lle
n 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 (
by

 £
52

3k
) 

w
hi

le
 a

rr
ea

rs
 h

as
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

by
 £

1,
09

7k
.  

 A
s 

lo
ss

es
 in

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

in
cl

ud
e 

w
rit

e-
of

fs
 th

is
 m

ig
ht

 in
di

ca
te

 th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 n

ot
 r

ou
tin

el
y 

re
vi

ew
in

g 
its

 a
rr

ea
rs

 a
nd

 r
eg

ul
ar

ly
 w

rit
in

g 
of

f u
nc

ol
le

ct
ab

le
 a

rr
ea

rs
.  

D
is

ab
le

d
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 G
ra

n
t 

N
o 

is
su

es
 o

f c
on

ce
rn

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 th
is

 a
ud

it.
 

    A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
– 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
5

 

Page 27



R
es

u
lt

s 
o

f 
20

10
/1

1 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n

 
w

o
rk

T
h

is
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 s
u

m
m

ar
is

es
 t

h
e 

re
su

lt
s 

o
f 

m
y 

20
10

/1
1 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 t

h
e 

is
su

es
 

ar
is

in
g

 f
ro

m
 t

h
at

 w
o

rk
. 

 T
ab

le
 2

: 
C

la
im

s 
an

d
 r

et
u

rn
s 

ab
o

ve
 £

50
0,

00
0 

C
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

 
V

al
u

e 
o

f 
cl

ai
m

 o
r 

re
tu

rn
 

p
re

se
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n

 (
£’

00
0)

 

W
as

 r
el

ia
n

ce
 p

la
ce

d
 o

n
 t

h
e 

co
n

tr
o

l e
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t?

 
V

al
u

e 
o

f 
an

y 
am

en
d

m
en

ts
 m

ad
e

W
as

 a
 q

u
al

if
ic

at
io

n
 le

tt
er

 
is

su
ed

?

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 c
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

be
ne

fit
 s

ch
em

e 
17

,1
36

,3
03

 
N

ot
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

as
 D

W
P

 s
pe

ci
fy

 
th

e 
te

st
in

g 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

N
o 

am
en

dm
en

ts
 

m
ad

e 
 

Y
es

 –
 O

ve
r-

cl
ai

m
 o

f b
en

ef
its

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

fo
r 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 
re

as
on

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
co

rr
ec

t 
in

co
m

e 
fig

ur
es

 b
ei

ng
 u

se
d 

in
 

th
e 

be
ne

fit
 c

al
cu

la
tio

n.
 

E
xt

ra
po

la
te

d 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

t o
f 

be
ne

fit
 o

f a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

£1
5,

00
0 

N
at

io
na

l n
on

-d
om

es
tic

 r
at

es
 

re
tu

rn
 

23
,2

11
,0

98
 

N
o,

 b
ec

au
se

 in
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 

ye
ar

 a
 la

rg
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

am
en

dm
en

ts
 w

er
e 

m
ad

e 
to

 th
e 

cl
ai

m
. 

< 
£5

00
 

N
o 

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
– 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
6

 

Page 28



T
ab

le
 3

: 
C

la
im

s 
b

et
w

ee
n

 £
12

5,
00

0 
an

d
 £

50
0,

00
0 

C
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

 
V

al
u

e 
o

f 
cl

ai
m

 o
r 

re
tu

rn
 

p
re

se
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n

 
(£

’0
00

)

V
al

u
e 

o
f 

an
y 

am
en

d
m

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
Q

u
al

if
ic

at
io

n
 le

tt
er

 

D
is

ab
le

d 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

 
31

0,
00

0 
£ 

ni
l 

N
o 

 ]   A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
– 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
7

 

Page 29



S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 o

n
 

p
re

vi
o

u
s 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

T
h

is
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 c
o

n
si

d
er

s 
th

e 
p

ro
g

re
ss

 m
ad

e 
in

 im
p

le
m

en
ti

n
g

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
I h

av
e 

p
re

vi
o

u
sl

y 
m

ad
e 

ar
is

in
g

 f
ro

m
 c

er
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

. 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

m
ad

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 in

 th
e 

20
09

/1
0 

gr
an

t c
la

im
s 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t. 
 T

ab
le

 4
: 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

o
n

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
ar

is
in

g
 f

ro
m

 c
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 w
o

rk
 u

n
d

er
ta

ke
n

 in
 e

ar
lie

r 
ye

ar
s 

A
g

re
ed

 a
ct

io
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

le
 o

ff
ic

er
C

u
rr

en
t 

st
at

u
s 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ap
pr

ov
e 

a 
po

lic
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

po
st

al
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

B
en

ef
it 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

a 
pr

og
ra

m
 o

f 
te

st
in

g 
is

 in
tr

od
uc

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

M
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
11

 
B

en
ef

its
 M

an
ag

er
 

T
he

 b
en

ef
its

 m
an

ag
er

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 th

e 
D

W
P

 w
ith

 
as

su
ra

nc
es

 a
ro

un
d 

th
is

 
w

hi
ch

 w
er

e 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
D

W
P

 in
 th

ei
r 

le
tte

r 
of

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
10

. 

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 m
ee

t D
W

P
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 

A
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r 
th

e 
re

te
nt

io
n 

of
 d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 

fr
om

 
th

e 
N

N
D

R
 c

om
pu

te
r 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
sy

st
em

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

cl
ai

m
 to

 
th

e 
ce

nt
ra

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

de
pa

rt
m

en
t 

H
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
11

 
R

ev
en

ue
s 

M
an

ag
er

 
A

n 
ad

eq
ua

te
 a

ud
it 

tr
ai

l t
o 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 N

N
D

R
 c

la
im

 
w

as
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

th
is

 y
ea

r 

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
– 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
8

 

Page 30



S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

T
h

is
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 t
h

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
ar

is
in

g
 f

ro
m

 m
y 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

ac
ti

o
n

s 
ag

re
ed

 f
o

r 
im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

. 
 T

ab
le

 5
: 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

ar
is

in
g

 f
ro

m
 2

01
0/

11
 c

er
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

A
g

re
ed

 a
ct

io
n

 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 o
ff

ic
er

 

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 c
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

be
ne

fit
 

sc
he

m
e:

 e
rr

or
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 o
ur

 te
st

in
g 

th
at

 in
di

ca
te

 o
ve

rp
ay

m
en

ts
 in

 s
ub

si
dy

 
ar

e 
ex

tr
ap

ol
at

ed
 a

nd
 r

ep
or

te
d 

to
 th

e 
D

W
P

. T
he

 D
W

P
 m

ay
 r

ed
uc

e 
its

 s
ub

si
dy

 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il,

 o
r 

m
ay

 r
eq

ui
re

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

to
 

th
e 

D
W

P
 o

n 
th

e 
va

lid
ity

 o
f s

ub
si

dy
 

cl
ai

m
ed

. 

 M
  

T
he

 B
en

ef
its

 M
an

ag
er

 s
ho

ul
d 

en
su

re
 

th
at

 a
 s

am
pl

e 
of

 th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 q
ua

lit
y 

ch
ec

ks
 (

po
st

 p
ay

m
en

t v
er

ifi
ca

tio
n 

ch
ec

ks
) 

sh
ou

ld
 fo

cu
s 

on
 th

e 
ar

ea
s 

of
 

w
ea

kn
es

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
ex

te
rn

al
 

au
di

t. 
 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

12
 

B
en

ef
its

 M
an

ag
er

 

N
at

io
na

l n
on

-d
om

es
tic

 r
at

es
 r

et
ur

n:
 In

 
ou

r 
te

st
in

g 
w

e 
no

te
d 

th
at

 th
e 

st
at

ed
 

lo
ss

es
 in

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

(w
rit

e 
of

fs
) 

ha
d 

fa
lle

n 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 w

he
re

as
 th

e 
le

ve
l o

f 
N

N
D

R
 a

rr
ea

rs
 h

ad
 r

is
en

, w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 

in
di

ca
te

 th
at

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
no

t r
eg

ul
ar

ly
 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

its
 N

N
D

R
 a

rr
ea

rs
. 

M
 

T
he

 R
ev

en
ue

s 
m

an
ag

er
 s

ho
ul

d 
ro

ut
in

el
y 

re
vi

ew
 th

e 
le

ve
l o

f N
N

D
R

 
ar

re
ar

s,
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r 

ba
d 

de
bt

 a
nd

 s
ub

m
it 

w
rit

e 
of

fs
 fo

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
 

re
gu

la
rly

. 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

12
 

R
ev

en
ue

s 
M

an
ag

er
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
– 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
9

 

Page 31



S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 f

ee
s 

T
h

is
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 s
u

m
m

ar
is

es
 t

h
e 

fe
es

 a
ri

si
n

g
 f

ro
m

 m
y 

20
10

/1
1 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 t

h
e 

re
as

o
n

s 
fo

r 
an

y 
si

g
n

if
ic

an
t 

ch
an

g
es

 in
 t

h
e 

le
ve

l o
f 

fe
es

 f
ro

m
 2

00
9/

10
. 

 T
ab

le
 6

: 
S

u
m

m
ar

y 
o

f 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n

 f
ee

s 

C
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

 
20

10
/1

1 
fe

e 
20

09
/1

0 
fe

e 
R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

ch
an

g
es

 in
 f

ee
 g

re
at

er
 

th
an

 +
/-

 1
0 

p
er

 c
en

t 

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 c
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

be
ne

fit
 s

ch
em

e 
£1

46
50

 
£1

3,
32

7 
 

N
/a

 

N
at

io
na

l n
on

-d
om

es
tic

 r
at

es
 r

et
ur

n 
£3

,1
02

 
£4

,8
85

  
Im

pr
ov

ed
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
w

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s 
an

d 
am

en
dm

en
ts

 

D
is

ab
le

d 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

£6
82

 
£7

82
 

N
/a

 

T
ot

al
 

£1
8,

43
4 

£1
8,

99
4 

N
/a

 
    A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

– 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

or
t 

10
 

Page 32



©
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 2
01

2.
 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 P

ub
lis

hi
ng

 T
ea

m
. 

Im
ag

e 
co

py
rig

ht
 ©

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. 

 T
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 g

ra
nt

-p
ay

in
g 

bo
di

es
, a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s,
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 a
nd

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 e
xp

la
in

s 
th

e 
re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

of
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 o

f t
he

 a
ud

ite
d 

bo
dy

.  
                  

 
 w

w
w

.a
u

d
it

-c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

.g
o

v.
u

k
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
12

 

  

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 
AUDIT BOARD   29TH MARCH 2012 
     
 

AUDIT COMMISSION OPINION AUDIT PLAN 2011/12  
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr Roger Hollingworth  
Portfolio Holder Consulted  No  
Relevant Head of Service Jayne Pickering ( Exec Director)  
Wards Affected  All 
Ward Councillor Consulted None specific  
 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 

 
1.1 To present to members the Audit Commission 2011/12 Opinion Plan . A 

copy of this document is attached to this report as Appendix A. 
  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1 Members are asked to note and agree the 2011/12 Audit Opinion Plan 
 

 
3. KEY ISSUES 

 
 Financial Implications    

 
3.1 The fee associated with the External Audit Opinion and audit of 

accounting statements and consideration of the Councils arrangements 
for securing economy, effectiveness and efficiency is £106k. This 
reflects an 11.5% reduction from 2010/11 Audit fee. 

 
 

 Legal Implications 
 

3.2  The Council has a statutory responsibility to formally prepare accounts 
in compliance with national guidelines and ensure these are audited by 
an audited body. 

 
 
 Service / Operational Implications  

 
3.3 Attached at Appendix A is the 2011/12 Audit Opinion Plan . The Plan 

sets out work that the Audit Commission propose to undertake in 
2011/12 in relation to the Audit and any specific risks that have will 
require additional review and consideration. 

 
3.4 There are 3 specific risks that have been identified by the Audit 

Commission which although not deemed as being significant will  be 
reviewed by the Commission as part of the Audit. These include: 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 35



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 
AUDIT BOARD   29TH MARCH 2012 
     
 

 
• Proposed changes to the accounts format from Word to 

Excel  
• Shared service allocation of costs between the Councils  
• Disclosure of Heritage Assets  

 
3.5 The work by the Audit Commission will enable a robust opinion to be 

made across all the internal control and accounting arrangements that 
the Council has in place.  

 
 

 
 Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications  

 
3.6 None as a direct result of this report 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT    

 
4.1 The Financial Services risk register includes the preparation of the 

accounts and the controls in place to ensure the accounts are treated 
in compliance with accounting standards. Risk management 
arrangements in place across the organisation ensure that risks are 
addressed and mitigated. 

 
5. APPENDICES 

 
  Appendix 1 – Audit Commission Audit Plan 2011/12 
   

.   
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:  Jayne Pickering – Exec Director Finance and Resources   
E Mail: j.pickering@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Tel:  01527-881400  

Page 36



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
1

 A
u

d
it

 p
la

n
B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

ci
l

A
u

d
it

 2
01

1/
12

 

Page 37



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
2

 C
o

n
te

n
ts

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..3

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 W

h
o

le
 o

f 
G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

A
cc

o
u

n
ts

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
4

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.8

K
ey

 m
ile

st
o

n
es

 a
n

d
 d

ea
d

lin
es

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..1

1

T
h

e 
au

d
it

 t
ea

m
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..1

2

In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 a

n
d

 q
u

al
it

y.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
13

F
ee

s
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.1

5

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
 –

 In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
ct

iv
it

y.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
17

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 2
 –

 B
as

is
 f

o
r 

fe
e

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

19

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3
 –

 G
lo

ss
ar

y
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
20

      

Page 38



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
3

 In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

T
h

is
 p

la
n

 s
et

s 
o

u
t 

th
e 

w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

th
e 

20
11

/1
2 

au
d

it
. T

h
e 

p
la

n
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

’s
 

ri
sk

-b
as

ed
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 t

o
 a

u
d

it
 p

la
n

n
in

g
.

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

  

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 o

f A
ud

ite
d 

B
od

ie
s 

se
ts

 o
ut

 th
e 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
of

 th
e 

au
di

to
r 

an
d 

th
e 

au
di

te
d 

bo
dy

. T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 h

as
 is

su
ed

 a
 c

op
y 

of
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t t
o 

yo
u.

  

T
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t s

um
m

ar
is

es
 w

he
re

 th
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 o

f t
he

 a
ud

ite
d 

bo
dy

 b
eg

in
 a

nd
 e

nd
 a

nd
 I 

un
de

rt
ak

e 
m

y 
au

di
t w

or
k 

to
 

m
ee

t t
he

se
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s.
 

I c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

st
at

ut
or

y 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 g

ov
er

ni
ng

 m
y 

au
di

t w
or

k,
 in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
: 

!
 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 1

99
8;

 a
nd

  
!

 
th

e 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t b
od

ie
s.

  

M
y 

au
di

t d
oe

s 
no

t r
el

ie
ve

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

r 
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

B
oa

rd
, a

s 
th

os
e 

ch
ar

ge
d 

w
ith

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 o
f t

he
ir 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s.

 

  Page 39



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
4

 A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 

W
h

o
le

 o
f 

G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
A

cc
o

u
n

ts

I w
ill

 c
ar

ry
 o

u
t 

th
e 

au
d

it
 o

f 
th

e 
ac

co
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h

 In
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

o
n

 A
u

d
it

in
g

 (
U

K
 a

n
d

 Ir
el

an
d

) 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
u

d
it

in
g

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

o
ar

d
 (

A
P

B
).

 I 
am

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 

is
su

e 
an

 a
u

d
it

 r
ep

o
rt

 g
iv

in
g

 m
y 

o
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 w

h
et

h
er

 t
h

e 
ac

co
u

n
ts

 g
iv

e 
a 

tr
u

e 
an

d
 f

ai
r 

vi
ew

.  

M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

 

I w
ill

 a
pp

ly
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

t o
f m

at
er

ia
lit

y 
in

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
pe

rf
or

m
in

g 
m

y 
au

di
t, 

in
 e

va
lu

at
in

g 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f a

ny
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
, a

nd
 in

 fo
rm

in
g 

m
y 

op
in

io
n.

  

Id
en

ti
fy

in
g

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

ks
  

I n
ee

d 
to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

an
y 

ris
k 

of
 m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
t (

w
he

th
er

 d
ue

 to
 fr

au
d 

or
 e

rr
or

) 
in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

. I
 d

o 
th

is
 b

y:
 

!
 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 r

is
ks

 fa
ci

ng
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
as

se
ss

in
g 

yo
ur

 o
w

n 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
; 

!
 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y;

  
!

 
as

se
ss

in
g 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 r

ev
ie

w
in

g 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t, 

th
e 

IT
 c

on
tr

ol
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
nd

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it;
 a

nd
  

!
 

as
se

ss
in

g 
th

e 
ris

k 
of

 m
at

er
ia

l m
is

st
at

em
en

t a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
nd

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
s.

 

Id
en

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

si
g

n
if

ic
an

t 
ri

sk
s 

 

I h
av

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 th
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l r
is

ks
 th

at
 a

re
 r

el
ev

an
t t

o 
th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
.  

I h
av

e 
no

t i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 a

ny
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t r
is

ks
 in

 2
01

1/
12

. 
th

re
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ris
ks

 a
re

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
be

lo
w

.  

Page 40



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
5

 T
ab

le
 1

: 
S

p
ec

if
ic

 R
is

k 
 

 

R
is

k
A

u
d

it
 r

es
p

o
n

se
 

Th
e 

fin
al

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
fo

rm
at

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

th
at

 s
up

po
rt

s 
th

e 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 

st
at

em
en

t 
of

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
is

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
fr

om
 a

 W
or

d 
ba

si
s 

to
 E

xc
el

. 
Th

is
 

sh
ou

ld
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
va

lid
at

io
n 

ch
ec

ks
 b

et
w

ee
n 

fig
ur

es
 in

 t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

s.
 

H
ow

ev
er

 t
he

re
 is

 a
 r

is
k 

th
at

 w
he

n 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 a

re
 m

ad
e 

to
 t

he
 f

or
m

at
 

th
at

 t
he

 d
is

cl
os

ur
es

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

SO
R
P 

co
m

pl
ia

nt
.  

I 
ha

ve
 a

gr
ee

d 
w

ith
 t

he
 A

cc
ou

nt
an

t 
th

at
 s

he
 w

ill
 s

en
d 

us
 a

 c
op

y 
of

 t
he

 
re

vi
se

d 
fo

rm
at

 (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
po

lic
ie

s)
 in

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
2 

an
d 

I 
w

ill
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
an

 in
iti

al
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

o 
co

nf
irm

 t
he

 a
de

qu
ac

y 
of

 d
is

cl
os

ur
es

.  

Th
e 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 u

se
 o

f 
sh

ar
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
pr

es
en

ts
 r

is
k 

ar
ou

nd
 a

llo
ca

tin
g 

an
d 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

st
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

. 
  

O
ur

 w
or

k 
la

st
 y

ea
r 

co
nf

irm
ed

 th
at

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 w

er
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

nd
 

ad
eq

ua
te

.  
I w

ill
 fo

llo
w

 th
is

 u
p 

ag
ai

n 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

as
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 a
re

 
ex

te
nd

ed
 a

nd
 I 

w
ill

 s
ub

st
an

tiv
el

y 
te

st
 th

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 th

e 
cr

os
s 

ch
ar

ge
s 

an
d 

en
su

re
 th

ey
 a

re
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 fo
rm

al
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

tw
o 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 a
nd

 a
re

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 b

y 
cl

ea
r 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

ou
tli

ni
ng

 a
 c

le
ar

 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 fo

r 
ap

po
rt

io
nm

en
t 

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 n

ew
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

se
 a

ny
 

H
er

ita
ge

 a
ss

et
s 

in
 it

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 

I 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 f
or

 e
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 a
nd

 v
al

ui
ng

 
H

er
ita

ge
 a

ss
et

s 
an

d 
co

ns
id

er
 w

he
th

er
 t

he
re

 is
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 d

is
cl

os
ur

e 
in

 t
he

 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 

 G
ro

u
p

 a
cc

o
u

n
ts

  

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

pr
ep

ar
es

 g
ro

up
 a

cc
ou

nt
s.

  T
hi

s 
is

 in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 th

e 
A

rt
rix

 C
en

tr
e 

(B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 A
rt

s 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t T

ru
st

).
  T

he
 c

en
tr

e 
is

 o
pe

ra
te

d 
by

 a
 

se
pa

ra
te

 T
ru

st
.  

T
he

re
 is

 n
o 

in
co

m
e 

or
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 a

ttr
ib

ut
ab

le
 a

nd
 th

is
 is

 c
on

fir
m

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
ou

r 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
w

ith
 T

ru
st

ee
s.

  T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s.
  I

 a
m

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

th
e 

di
re

ct
io

n,
 s

up
er

vi
si

on
 a

nd
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 g
ro

up
 a

ud
it.

  

O
ve

ra
ll 

T
es

ti
n

g
 s

tr
at

eg
y

M
y 

au
di

t i
nv

ol
ve

s:
 

!
 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 r

e-
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f w
or

k 
of

 y
ou

r 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

rs
; 

!
 

te
st

in
g 

of
 th

e 
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 c

on
tr

ol
s;

  
!

 
re

lia
nc

e 
on

 th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 o
th

er
 a

ud
ito

rs
; 

Page 41



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
6

 !
 

re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 e

xp
er

ts
; a

nd
 

!
 

su
bs

ta
nt

iv
e 

te
st

s 
of

 d
et

ai
l o

f t
ra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 a
nd

 a
m

ou
nt

s.
 

I h
av

e 
so

ug
ht

 to
:  

!
 

m
ax

im
is

e 
re

lia
nc

e,
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 r
e-

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

, o
n 

th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 y
ou

r 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

rs
, w

he
re

 it
 is

 ju
dg

ed
 e

ffi
ci

en
t t

o 
do

 s
o;

 a
nd

 
!

 
m

ax
im

is
e 

th
e 

w
or

k 
th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 b
ef

or
e 

yo
u 

pr
ep

ar
e 

yo
ur

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
. 

 T
he

 n
at

ur
e 

an
d 

tim
in

g 
of

 m
y 

pr
op

os
ed

 w
or

k 
is

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s.

 

T
ab

le
 2

: 
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 w

o
rk

 
 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

in
te

rn
al

 a
u

d
it

 
C

o
n

tr
o

ls
te

st
in

g
 

R
el

ia
n

ce
 o

n
 t

h
e 

w
o

rk
 o

f 
o

th
er

 
au

d
it

o
rs

R
el

ia
n

ce
 o

n
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

ex
p

er
ts

 
S

u
b

st
an

ti
ve

 t
es

ti
n

g
 

In
te

rim
 

vi
si

t 
 D

eb
to

rs
 

D
eb

to
rs

 

C
re

di
to

rs
 

G
en

er
al

 le
dg

er
 

P
ay

ro
ll 

– 
R

ed
di

tc
h 

B
or

ou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il 

– 
au

di
to

rs
: A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 
 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f a

cc
ou

nt
s 

fo
rm

at
s 

N
on

 p
ur

ch
as

e-
or

de
rs

 

O
pe

ni
ng

 b
al

an
ce

s 

P
en

si
on

s 

R
el

at
ed

 p
ar

ty
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 

C
la

im
s 

an
d 

lit
ig

at
io

ns
 

F
ix

ed
 a

ss
et

 v
er

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 

F
in

al
 

vi
si

t 
F

in
an

ci
al

 
sy

st
em

s 
re

po
rt

s 
an

d 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 

 
Jo

in
t C

om
m

itt
ee

 –
 li

m
ite

d 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

– 
C

le
m

en
t K

ey
s 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 P

en
si

on
s 

as
se

ts
 a

nd
 

lia
bi

lit
ie

s 
– 

au
di

to
r 

to
 W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

(A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
) 

P
en

si
on

s 
lia

bi
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

as
se

ts
 –

 M
er

ce
rs

 a
nd

 o
ur

 
ow

n 
co

ns
ul

tin
g 

ac
tu

ar
y 

V
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 p
ro

pe
rt

y,
 p

la
nt

 
an

d 
eq

ui
pm

en
t –

 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

V
al

ue
r 

A
ll 

m
at

er
ia

l a
cc

ou
nt

s 
ba

la
nc

es
 

an
d 

am
ou

nt
s 

 

Y
ea

r-
en

d 
fe

ed
er

 s
ys

te
m

 
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
ns

 

S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
ap

po
rt

io
nm

en
t 

 Page 42



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
7

 I w
ill

 a
gr

ee
 w

ith
 y

ou
 a

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
en

tr
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

.  

 W
h

o
le

 o
f 

G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
A

cc
o

u
n

ts
 

A
lo

ng
si

de
 m

y 
w

or
k 

on
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
, I

 w
ill

 a
ls

o 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l A

ud
it 

O
ffi

ce
 o

n 
yo

ur
 W

ho
le

 o
f G

ov
er

nm
en

t A
cc

ou
nt

s 
re

tu
rn

. T
he

 e
xt

en
t o

f m
y 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f m

y 
re

po
rt

 a
re

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
by

 th
e 

N
at

io
na

l A
ud

it 
O

ffi
ce

. 

Page 43



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
8

 V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

I a
m

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 r

ea
ch

 a
 c

o
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

's
 a

rr
an

g
em

en
ts

 t
o

 s
ec

u
re

 e
co

n
o

m
y,

 
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

n
es

s.
  

M
y 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 o

n 
th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y’

s 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
tw

o 
cr

ite
ria

, s
pe

ci
fie

d 
by

 th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

. T
he

se
 r

el
at

e 
to

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r:

 
!

 
se

cu
rin

g 
fin

an
ci

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

 –
 fo

cu
si

ng
 o

n 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

is
 m

an
ag

in
g 

its
 fi

na
nc

ia
l r

is
ks

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
a 

st
ab

le
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

os
iti

on
 fo

r 
th

e 
fo

re
se

ea
bl

e 
fu

tu
re

; a
nd

 
!

 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
ho

w
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
se

cu
re

s 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
– 

fo
cu

si
ng

 o
n 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
is

 p
rio

rit
is

in
g 

its
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 w
ith

in
 

tig
ht

er
 b

ud
ge

ts
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

pr
od

uc
tiv

ity
 a

nd
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

. 

Id
en

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

si
g

n
if

ic
an

t 
ri

sk
s 

 

I h
av

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 th
e 

ris
ks

 th
at

 a
re

 r
el

ev
an

t t
o 

m
y 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 c
on

cl
us

io
n.

 I 
ha

ve
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 r
is

ks
 th

at
 I 

w
ill

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
ro

ug
h 

m
y 

w
or

k.
 

T
ab

le
 3

: 
S

ig
n

if
ic

an
t 

ri
sk

s 
 

R
is

k
A

u
d

it
 r

es
p

o
n

se
 

S
ep

ar
at

e 
au

d
it

 o
u

tp
u

t?
 

F
in

an
ci

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

 -
 T

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
ba

la
nc

ed
 b

ud
ge

ts
 fo

r 
11

/1
2 

an
d 

12
/1

3.
  T

he
y 

in
cl

ud
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

sa
vi

ng
s 

an
d 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
po

si
tio

n 
is

 a
t r

is
k 

if 
th

es
e 

ar
e 

no
t 

de
liv

er
ed

. O
ve

r 
£8

00
k 

of
 s

av
in

gs
 in

 

I w
ill

 r
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 to
 

de
liv

er
 th

es
e 

sa
vi

ng
s 

to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

th
at

 th
er

e 
ar

e:
: 

! 
de

ta
ile

d 
pl

an
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

sa
vi

ng
s.

 

! 
ad

eq
ua

te
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f 
in

di
vi

du
al

 s
av

in
gs

 p
la

ns
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

l. 
 

! 
ad

eq
ua

te
 r

is
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 

A
nn

ua
l a

ud
it 

le
tte

r 
 

Page 44



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
9

 

R
is

k
A

u
d

it
 r

es
p

o
n

se
 

S
ep

ar
at

e 
au

d
it

 o
u

tp
u

t?
 

11
/1

2,
 a

nd
 £

1.
2m

 in
 2

01
2-

13
 a

re
 

pl
an

ne
d 

to
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 d

ire
ct

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
sa

vi
ng

s 
an

d 
th

e 
tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

t a
nd

 s
ha

re
d 

se
rv

ic
es

.  
 

an
d 

th
at

 s
av

in
gs

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 
 

 

S
ec

ur
in

g 
E

co
no

m
y,

 E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s-
 T

he
re

 is
 a

n 
ac

ce
le

ra
te

d 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 s
ha

re
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n.

 T
he

 
in

iti
al

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

s 
fo

r 
sh

ar
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

m
en

de
d 

so
 th

at
 a

ll 
re

le
va

nt
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

sh
ar

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
tw

o 
bo

di
es

 w
ith

in
 1

8 
m

on
th

s 
ra

th
er

 th
an

 th
e 

th
re

e 
ye

ar
s 

or
ig

in
al

ly
 p

la
nn

ed
.  

A
t t

he
 s

am
e 

tim
e 

th
er

e 
is

 a
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 ‘p

ro
ce

ss
 r

ev
ie

w
’ (

th
e 

tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
t)

 w
hi

ch
 s

ee
ks

 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 p
ro

du
ct

iv
ity

 g
ai

ns
 (

an
d 

sa
vi

ng
s)

 fr
om

 tr
an

sf
or

m
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y.
 

T
he

 r
is

ks
 a

re
: 

- 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
ch

an
ge

s 
ca

nn
ot

 
be

 m
ad

e 
by

 m
id

 2
01

2 
 

- 
sa

vi
ng

s 
ar

e 
no

t a
ch

ie
ve

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

sh
or

t t
im

ef
ra

m
e 

I w
ill

 r
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 o
ve

ra
ll 

pr
oj

ec
t p

la
n 

fo
r 

tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n.

  I
 w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

ne
 s

er
vi

ce
 (

ho
us

in
g 

be
ne

fit
s)

 a
nd

 c
on

si
de

r 
w

ha
t a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l h

as
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 m
an

ag
e 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

, m
ea

su
re

 s
uc

ce
ss

 
an

d 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 

im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 a
nd

 m
ea

su
re

 s
uc

ce
ss

 

Page 45



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
10

 

R
is

k
A

u
d

it
 r

es
p

o
n

se
 

S
ep

ar
at

e 
au

d
it

 o
u

tp
u

t?
 

- 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y 
is

 a
dv

er
se

ly
 

af
fe

ct
ed

 

 

Page 46



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
11

 K
ey

 m
ile

st
o

n
es

 a
n

d
 d

ea
d

lin
es

 
T

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 p

re
pa

re
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 b

y 
30

 J
un

e 
20

12
. I

 a
im

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

m
y 

w
or

k 
an

d 
is

su
e 

m
y 

op
in

io
n 

[a
nd

 v
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

 
co

nc
lu

si
on

] b
y 

30
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

12
.  

T
ab

le
 4

: 
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 t

im
et

ab
le

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
ed

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 

 

A
ct

iv
it

y 
D

at
e

O
u

tp
u

t

A
ud

it 
P

la
n 

fo
r 

20
11

/1
2 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
12

 
R

ep
or

t t
o 

A
ud

it 
B

oa
rd

 

O
pi

ni
on

: c
on

tr
ol

s 
an

d 
ea

rly
 s

ub
st

an
tiv

e 
te

st
in

g 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
– 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

re
po

rt
 b

y 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

O
pi

ni
on

: r
ec

ei
pt

 o
f a

cc
ou

nt
s 

an
d 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
w

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s 
ac

co
un

ts
 –

 3
0 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

– 
9 

Ju
ly

 2
01

2 

 

O
pi

ni
on

: s
ub

st
an

tiv
e 

te
st

in
g 

Ju
ly

 &
 A

ug
us

t 2
01

2 
 

V
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

: f
in

an
ci

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

 –
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f s
av

in
gs

 p
la

ns
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

V
F

M
 c

on
cl

us
io

n 

V
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

: S
ec

ur
in

g 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
– 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
t 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

V
F

M
 c

on
cl

us
io

n 

P
re

se
nt

 A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
R

ep
or

t a
t t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

20
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

12
 

A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
R

ep
or

t 

Is
su

e 
op

in
io

n 
an

d 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 c

on
cl

us
io

n 
B

y 
30

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

 
A

ud
ito

r’s
 r

ep
or

t  

S
um

m
ar

is
e 

ov
er

al
l m

es
sa

ge
s 

fr
om

 th
e 

au
di

t 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
2 

A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r 

 Page 47



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
12

 T
h

e 
au

d
it

 t
ea

m
 

T
he

 k
ey

 m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
it 

te
am

 fo
r 

th
e 

20
11

/1
2 

au
di

t a
re

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s.

 

T
ab

le
 5

: 
A

u
d

it
 t

ea
m

 
 

N
am

e
C

o
n

ta
ct

 d
et

ai
ls

 
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
 

E
liz

ab
et

h 
C

av
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t A
ud

ito
r 

 

L-
C

av
e@

au
di

t-
co

m
m

is
si

on
.g

ov
.u

k 

08
44

 7
98

 7
55

2 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t i

nc
lu

di
ng

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 r

ep
or

ts
, s

ig
ni

ng
 th

e 
au

di
to

r’s
 r

ep
or

t a
nd

 li
ai

so
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
hi

ef
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e.
  

Z
oe

 T
ho

m
as

 

A
ud

it 
M

an
ag

er
 

z-
th

om
as

@
au

di
t-

co
m

m
is

si
on

.g
ov

.u
k 

08
44

 7
98

 7
55

7 

M
an

ag
es

 a
nd

 c
oo

rd
in

at
es

 th
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 e
le

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 a
ud

it 
w

or
k.

 K
ey

 p
oi

nt
 o

f c
on

ta
ct

 fo
r 

th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
. 

M
ar

y 
W

re
n 

T
ea

m
 L

ea
de

r 

m
-w

re
n@

au
id

t-
co

m
m

is
si

on
.g

ov
.u

k 

08
44

 7
98

 7
56

0 

le
ad

s 
th

e 
in

te
rim

 a
nd

 o
pi

ni
on

 a
ud

it 
vi

si
ts

 

Page 48



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
13

 In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 a

n
d

 q
u

al
it

y 
In

d
ep

en
d

en
ce

 

I c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

et
hi

ca
l s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

P
B

 a
nd

 w
ith

 th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 a

nd
 o

bj
ec

tiv
ity

 a
s 

su
m

m
ar

is
ed

 in
 a

pp
en

di
x 

1.
  

 I a
m

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 th
at

 m
ig

ht
 c

on
st

itu
te

 a
 th

re
at

 to
 in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 a

nd
 th

at
 I 

am
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 r

ep
or

t t
o 

yo
u.

 I 
ha

ve
 th

er
ef

or
e 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
sa

fe
gu

ar
ds

 to
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
th

re
at

. 

T
ab

le
 6

: 
T

h
re

at
s 

an
d

 s
af

eg
u

ar
d

s 
 

T
h

re
at

S
af

eg
u

ar
d

 

O
ne

 o
f t

he
 p

rin
ci

pa
l a

ud
ito

rs
 in

 W
es

t M
id

la
nd

s 
is

 r
el

at
ed

 to
 a

 
B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 C

ou
nc

ill
or

. 
T

he
 a

ud
ito

r 
w

ill
 n

ot
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 a
ny

 w
or

k 
at

 B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

. 

 
 

 Page 49



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
14

 Q
u

al
it

y 
o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 

I a
im

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 y

ou
 w

ith
 a

 fu
lly

 s
at

is
fa

ct
or

y 
au

di
t s

er
vi

ce
. I

f, 
ho

w
ev

er
, y

ou
 a

re
 u

na
bl

e 
to

 d
ea

l w
ith

 a
ny

 d
iff

ic
ul

ty
 th

ro
ug

h 
m

e 
an

d 
m

y 
te

am
 p

le
as

e 
co

nt
ac

t 
C

hr
is

 W
es

tw
oo

d,
 D

ire
ct

or
 –

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 &

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
, A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e,
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, 1
st

 F
lo

or
, M

ill
ba

nk
 T

ow
er

, M
ill

ba
nk

, L
on

do
n 

S
W

1P
 4

H
Q

  
(c

-w
es

tw
oo

d@
au

di
t-

co
m

m
is

si
on

.g
ov

.u
k)

 w
ho

 w
ill

 lo
ok

 in
to

 a
ny

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
 p

ro
m

pt
ly

 a
nd

 to
 d

o 
w

ha
t h

e 
ca

n 
to

 r
es

ol
ve

 th
e 

po
si

tio
n.

  

If 
yo

u 
ar

e 
st

ill
 n

ot
 s

at
is

fie
d 

yo
u 

m
ay

 o
f c

ou
rs

e 
ta

ke
 u

p 
th

e 
m

at
te

r 
w

ith
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 C

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

O
ffi

ce
r 

(T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
, 

W
es

tw
ar

d 
H

ou
se

, L
im

e 
K

iln
 C

lo
se

, S
to

ke
 G

iff
or

d,
 B

ris
to

l B
S

34
 8

S
R

).
 

  Page 50



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
15

 F
ee

s
T

h
e 

fe
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

au
d

it
 is

 £
10

6,
67

6,
 a

s 
se

t 
o

u
t 

in
 m

y 
le

tt
er

 o
f 

A
p

ri
l 2

01
1.

 

T
h

e 
au

d
it

 f
ee

 

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 h

as
 s

et
 a

 s
ca

le
 a

ud
it 

fe
e 

of
 £

10
6,

67
6,

 w
hi

ch
 r

ep
re

se
nt

s 
an

 1
1.

5 
pe

r 
ce

nt
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

on
 th

e 
au

di
t f

ee
 fo

r 
20

10
/1

1.
  

T
he

 s
ca

le
 fe

e 
co

ve
rs

:  
!

 
m

y 
au

di
t o

f y
ou

r 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

on
 th

e 
W

ho
le

 o
f G

ov
er

nm
en

t A
cc

ou
nt

s 
re

tu
rn

; a
nd

  
!

 
m

y 
w

or
k 

on
 r

ev
ie

w
in

g 
yo

ur
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

se
cu

rin
g 

ec
on

om
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 y

ou
r 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

.  

T
he

 s
ca

le
 fe

e 
re

fle
ct

s:
 

!
 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 d
ec

is
io

n 
no

t t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 fe
es

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 in

fla
tio

n;
  

!
 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

re
su

lti
ng

 fr
om

 th
e 

ne
w

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 lo
ca

l V
F

M
 a

ud
it 

w
or

k;
 a

nd
  

!
 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
on

e-
of

f w
or

k 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

fir
st

-t
im

e 
ad

op
tio

n 
of

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l F
in

an
ci

ng
 R

ep
or

tin
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 (

IF
R

S
).

  
 V

ar
ia

tio
ns

 fr
om

 th
e 

sc
al

e 
fe

e 
on

ly
 o

cc
ur

 w
he

re
 m

y 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 o

f a
ud

it 
ris

k 
an

d 
co

m
pl

ex
ity

 a
re

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 d
iff

er
en

t f
ro

m
 th

os
e 

re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 th

e 
20

10
/1

1 
fe

e.
 I 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s 

an
d 

ha
ve

 th
er

ef
or

e 
se

t t
he

 fe
e 

eq
ua

l t
o 

th
e 

sc
al

e 
fe

e.
 

 Page 51



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
16

 A
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s 

In
 s

et
tin

g 
th

e 
fe

e,
 I 

ha
ve

 m
ad

e 
th

e 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 a
pp

en
di

x 
2.

 W
he

re
 th

es
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ot

 m
et

, I
 m

ay
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 m

or
e 

w
or

k 
an

d 
th

er
ef

or
e 

in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

au
di

t f
ee

. W
he

re
 th

is
 is

 th
e 

ca
se

, I
 w

ill
 d

is
cu

ss
 th

is
 fi

rs
t w

ith
 th

e 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 fo
r 

F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 I 

w
ill

 is
su

e 
a 

su
pp

le
m

en
t t

o 
th

e 
pl

an
 to

 r
ec

or
d 

an
y 

re
vi

si
on

s 
to

 th
e 

ris
k 

an
d 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
fe

e.
 

S
p

ec
if

ic
 a

ct
io

n
s 

yo
u

 c
o

u
ld

 t
ak

e 
to

 r
ed

u
ce

 y
o

u
r 

au
d

it
 f

ee
 

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 r

eq
ui

re
s 

m
e 

to
 in

fo
rm

 y
ou

 o
f s

pe
ci

fic
 a

ct
io

ns
 y

ou
 c

ou
ld

 ta
ke

 to
 r

ed
uc

e 
yo

ur
 a

ud
it 

fe
e.

 I 
di

sc
us

s 
w

ith
 y

ou
r 

of
fic

er
s 

ar
ea

s 
w

he
re

 
th

er
e 

is
 s

co
pe

 to
 d

o 
th

is
.  

T
o

ta
l f

ee
s 

p
ay

ab
le

 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

fe
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

au
di

t, 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 w
ill

 c
ha

rg
es

 fe
es

 fo
r:

 
!

 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s;

 a
nd

 
!

 
th

e 
ag

re
ed

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f n
on

-a
ud

it 
se

rv
ic

es
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 a
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

as
si

st
an

ce
 p

ow
er

s.
  

B
as

ed
 o

n 
cu

rr
en

t p
la

ns
 th

e 
fe

es
 p

ay
ab

le
 a

re
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s.
 

T
ab

le
 7

: 
F

ee
s 

 

20
11

/1
2 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 
20

10
/1

1 
ac

tu
al

 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

 

A
ud

it 
10

6,
67

6*
 

12
0,

61
0*

 
(1

3,
93

4)
 

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

22
,0

00
 

22
,1

95
**

 
19

5 

N
on

-a
ud

it 
w

or
k 

ni
l 

ni
l 

ni
l 

T
o

ta
l

12
8,

67
6 

14
2,

80
5 

(1
41

29
) 

*p
le

as
e 

no
te

 th
at

 th
es

e 
fe

es
 a

re
 r

ed
uc

ed
 fu

rt
he

r 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t o
f r

eb
at

es
 fr

om
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 c
en

tr
al

ly
. 

**
 G

ra
nt

 c
la

im
s 

w
or

k 
is

 n
ot

 y
et

 fi
na

lis
ed

.  
W

e 
w

ill
 b

rin
g 

ou
r 

G
ra

nt
 C

la
im

s 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
th

e 
ne

xt
 A

ud
it 

an
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 a

nd
 th

is
 w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
a 

su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 fe

es
. 

Page 52



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
17

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
 –

 In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 a

n
d

 
o

b
je

ct
iv

it
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
ud

ito
rs

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 m
us

t c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
an

d 
S

ta
nd

in
g 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
fo

r 
A

ud
ito

rs
. W

he
n 

au
di

tin
g 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

, a
ud

ito
rs

 m
us

t a
ls

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
iti

ng
 P

ra
ct

ic
es

 B
oa

rd
 (

A
P

B
).

 T
he

se
 

im
po

se
 s

tr
in

ge
nt

 r
ul

es
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 a
nd

 o
bj

ec
tiv

ity
 o

f a
ud

ito
rs

. T
he

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

pu
ts

 in
 p

la
ce

 r
ob

us
t a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

es
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, o
ve

rs
ee

n 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e’

s 
D

ire
ct

or
 –

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

nd
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

, w
ho

 s
er

ve
s 

as
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e’
s 

E
th

ic
s 

P
ar

tn
er

. 

T
ab

le
 8

: 
In

d
ep

en
d

en
ce

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

ct
iv

it
y 

 

A
re

a 
R

eq
u

ir
em

en
t 

H
o

w
 w

e 
co

m
p

ly
 

B
us

in
es

s,
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t a

nd
 

pe
rs

on
al

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 

A
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 th

ei
r 

st
af

f s
ho

ul
d 

av
oi

d 
an

y 
of

fic
ia

l, 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 o

r 
pe

rs
on

al
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 w
hi

ch
 m

ay
, o

r 
co

ul
d 

re
as

on
ab

ly
 b

e 
pe

rc
ei

ve
d 

to
, c

au
se

 th
em

 in
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 o

r 
un

ju
st

ifi
ab

ly
 to

 li
m

it 
th

e 
sc

op
e,

 e
xt

en
t o

r 
rig

ou
r 

of
 th

ei
r 

w
or

k 
or

 
im

pa
ir 

th
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

ity
 o

f t
he

ir 
ju

dg
em

en
t. 

 

T
he

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

r 
an

d 
se

ni
or

 m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
it 

te
am

 m
us

t 
no

t t
ak

e 
pa

rt
 in

 p
ol

iti
ca

l a
ct

iv
ity

 fo
r 

a 
po

lit
ic

al
 p

ar
ty

, o
r 

sp
ec

ia
l 

in
te

re
st

 g
ro

up
, w

ho
se

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 r

el
at

e 
di

re
ct

ly
 to

 th
e 

fu
nc

tio
ns

 o
f 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t o

r 
N

H
S

 b
od

ie
s 

in
 g

en
er

al
, o

r 
to

 a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 lo
ca

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t o
r 

N
H

S
 b

od
y.

  

A
ll 

au
di

t s
ta

ff 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 d
ec

la
re

 a
ll 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
th

re
at

s 
to

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

. D
et

ai
ls

 o
f d

ec
la

ra
tio

ns
 

ar
e 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 a
ud

ito
rs

. W
he

re
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
, s

ta
ff 

ar
e 

ex
cl

ud
ed

 fr
om

 e
ng

ag
em

en
ts

 
or

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
s 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
th

re
at

 to
 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 to
 a

n 
ac

ce
pt

ab
ly

 lo
w

 le
ve

l. 
 

T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
st

af
f w

or
ki

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 

au
di

t w
ith

 a
ny

 r
el

ev
an

t d
ec

la
ra

tio
ns

. 

 Page 53



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
18

  

A
re

a 
R

eq
u

ir
em

en
t 

H
o

w
 w

e 
co

m
p

ly
 

Lo
ng

 a
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

w
ith

 a
ud

it 
cl

ie
nt

s 
T

he
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 a
ud

ito
r 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

au
di

t s
ho

ul
d,

 in
 a

ll 
bu

t 
th

e 
m

os
t e

xc
ep

tio
na

l c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s,
 b

e 
ch

an
ge

d 
at

 le
as

t o
nc

e 
ev

er
y 

se
ve

n 
ye

ar
s,

 w
ith

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

re
at

s 
to

 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 a

fte
r 

fiv
e 

ye
ar

s.
  

T
he

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ns
 a

nd
 m

on
ito

rs
 a

 
ce

nt
ra

l d
at

ab
as

e 
of

 a
ss

ig
nm

en
t o

f a
ud

ito
rs

 a
nd

 
se

ni
or

 a
ud

it 
st

af
f t

o 
en

su
re

 th
is

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t i
s 

m
et

. 

G
ift

s 
an

d 
ho

sp
ita

lit
y 

T
he

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

r 
an

d 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 a
ud

it 
te

am
 m

us
t a

bi
de

 
by

 th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 p

ol
ic

y 
on

 g
ift

s,
 h

os
pi

ta
lit

y 
an

d 
en

te
rt

ai
nm

en
t. 

 
A

ll 
au

di
t s

ta
ff 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 d

ec
la

re
 a

ny
 g

ift
s 

or
 

ho
sp

ita
lit

y 
irr

es
pe

ct
iv

e 
of

 w
he

th
er

 o
r 

no
t t

he
y 

ar
e 

ac
ce

pt
ed

. G
ift

s 
an

d 
H

os
pi

ta
lit

y 
m

ay
 o

nl
y 

be
 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 w
ith

 li
ne

 m
an

ag
er

 a
pp

ro
va

l. 
 

N
on

-a
ud

it 
w

or
k 

A
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t p
er

fo
rm

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 w

or
k 

fo
r 

an
 

au
di

te
d 

bo
dy

 (
th

at
 is

 w
or

k 
ab

ov
e 

th
e 

m
in

im
um

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

ei
r 

st
at

ut
or

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s)
 if

 it
 w

ou
ld

 c
om

pr
om

is
e 

th
ei

r 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 o

r 
m

ig
ht

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
a 

re
as

on
ab

le
 p

er
ce

pt
io

n 
th

at
 th

ei
r 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
. 

A
ud

ito
rs

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t a

cc
ep

t e
ng

ag
em

en
ts

 th
at

 in
vo

lv
e 

co
m

m
en

tin
g 

on
 th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f o
th

er
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 o
n 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 w
or

k 
w

ith
ou

t f
irs

t c
on

su
lti

ng
 th

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. 

W
or

k 
ov

er
 a

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
va

lu
e 

m
us

t o
nl

y 
be

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
io

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f t
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

ud
it 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

R
eg

ul
at

io
n.

  

A
ll 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 w

or
k 

is
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 r
ev

ie
w

 
an

d 
ap

pr
ov

al
 b

y 
th

e 
ap

po
in

te
d 

au
di

to
r 

an
d 

th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 –
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
, t

o 
en

su
re

 
th

at
 in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 is

 n
ot

 c
om

pr
om

is
ed

. 

 

 C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e,

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 S

ta
nd

in
g 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
an

d 
A

P
B

 E
th

ic
al

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

Page 54



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
19

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 2
 –

 B
as

is
 f

o
r 

fe
e 

 
 

 
In

 s
et

tin
g 

th
e 

fe
e,

 I 
ha

ve
 a

ss
um

ed
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g.

 
!

 
T

he
 r

is
k 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 is

 n
ot

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 d
iff

er
en

t t
o 

th
at

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
fo

r 
20

10
/1

1.
 F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e:

 
!

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
ar

e 
op

er
at

in
g 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y;

  
!

I s
ec

ur
e 

th
e 

co
-o

pe
ra

tio
n 

of
 o

th
er

 a
ud

ito
rs

;  
!

 
 T

he
 r

is
k 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 m

y 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
is

 n
ot

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 d
iff

er
en

t t
o 

th
at

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
fo

r 
20

10
/1

1.
 

!
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
m

ee
ts

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l s
ta

nd
ar

ds
. 

!
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
un

de
rt

ak
es

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 w

or
k 

on
 a

ll 
sy

st
em

s 
th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
 m

at
er

ia
l f

ig
ur

es
 in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
on

 w
hi

ch
 I 

ca
n 

re
ly

. 
!

 
T

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

pr
ov

id
es

:  
!

go
od

 q
ua

lit
y 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

an
d 

re
co

rd
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 th

e 
te

xt
 o

f t
he

 o
th

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 b
e 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

 b
y 

1 
Ju

ly
 2

01
2;

  
!

ot
he

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

qu
es

te
d 

w
ith

in
 a

gr
ee

d 
tim

es
ca

le
s;

  
!

pr
om

pt
 r

es
po

ns
es

 to
 d

ra
ft 

re
po

rt
s;

 a
nd

 
!

 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 q

ue
st

io
ns

 a
sk

ed
 o

r 
ob

je
ct

io
ns

 m
ad

e 
by

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t e

le
ct

or
s.

 

W
he

re
 th

es
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ot

 m
et

, I
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 m
or

e 
w

or
k 

w
hi

ch
 is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
an

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
au

di
t f

ee
.  

 Page 55



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
20

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3
 –

 G
lo

ss
ar

y
A

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts

T
he

 a
nn

ua
l s

ta
te

m
en

t o
f a

cc
ou

nt
s 

th
at

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 p
re

pa
re

, w
hi

ch
 r

ep
or

t t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
os

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
A

cc
ou

nt
s 

an
d 

A
ud

it 
(E

ng
la

nd
) 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 2
01

1 
an

d 
th

e 
C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

. 

A
n

n
u

al
 A

u
d

it
 L

et
te

r 
 

R
ep

or
t i

ss
ue

d 
by

 th
e 

au
di

to
r 

to
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

af
te

r 
th

e 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

au
di

t t
ha

t s
um

m
ar

is
es

 th
e 

au
di

t w
or

k 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t i
n 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
an

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
is

su
es

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 a
ud

ito
rs

’ w
or

k.
  

A
n

n
u

al
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
 

T
he

 a
ud

ito
r’s

 r
ep

or
t o

n 
m

at
te

rs
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 th

os
e 

ch
ar

ge
d 

w
ith

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

be
fo

re
 th

e 
au

di
to

r 
is

su
es

 th
ei

r 
op

in
io

n 
an

d 
co

nc
lu

si
on

. 

A
n

n
u

al
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 

T
he

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t o
n 

th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

sy
st

em
s 

of
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 th

at
 s

up
po

rt
s 

th
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t o

f t
he

 A
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

po
lic

ie
s 

ai
m

s 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

.

A
u

d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

ac
co

u
n

ts
  

T
he

 a
ud

it 
of

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 o
f a

n 
au

di
te

d 
bo

dy
 c

om
pr

is
es

 a
ll 

w
or

k 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t b
y 

an
 a

ud
ito

r 
un

de
r 

th
e 

C
od

e 
to

 m
ee

t t
he

ir 
st

at
ut

or
y 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

un
de

r 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 A
ct

 1
99

8.
  

A
u

d
it

ed
 b

o
d

y 
 

A
 b

od
y 

to
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 is

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

ap
po

in
tin

g 
th

e 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

r.
 

Page 56



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
21

 A
u

d
it

in
g

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

o
ar

d
 (

A
P

B
) 

 

T
he

 b
od

y 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

U
K

 fo
r 

is
su

in
g 

au
di

tin
g 

st
an

da
rd

s,
 e

th
ic

al
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

gu
id

an
ce

 to
 a

ud
ito

rs
. I

ts
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
re

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

hi
gh

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

f a
ud

iti
ng

 th
at

 m
ee

t t
he

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
of

 u
se

rs
 o

f f
in

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

pu
bl

ic
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 in
 th

e 
au

di
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

s.
  

A
u

d
it

in
g

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

s 
 

P
ro

no
un

ce
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 A

P
B

 th
at

 c
on

ta
in

 b
as

ic
 p

rin
ci

pl
es

 a
nd

 e
ss

en
tia

l p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

w
ith

 w
hi

ch
 a

ud
ito

rs
 m

us
t c

om
pl

y,
 e

xc
ep

t w
he

re
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
st

at
ed

 in
 

th
e 

au
di

tin
g 

st
an

da
rd

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
.  

A
u

d
it

o
r(

s)

A
ud

ito
rs

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

.  

C
o

d
e 

(t
h

e)

T
he

 C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t b

od
ie

s 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 P

ar
lia

m
en

t. 
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 (
th

e)
  

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 fo

r 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

 in
 E

ng
la

nd
.  

E
th

ic
al

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s 
 

P
ro

no
un

ce
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 A

P
B

 th
at

 c
on

ta
in

 b
as

ic
 p

rin
ci

pl
es

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, i
nt

eg
rit

y 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
ity

 th
at

 a
pp

ly
 to

 th
e 

co
nd

uc
t o

f a
ud

its
 a

nd
 w

ith
 

w
hi

ch
 a

ud
ito

rs
 m

us
t c

om
pl

y,
 e

xc
ep

t w
he

re
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
st

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
st

an
da

rd
 c

on
ce

rn
ed

.  

G
ro

u
p

 a
cc

o
u

n
ts

  

C
on

so
lid

at
ed

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 o

f a
n 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
an

d 
its

 s
ub

si
di

ar
ie

s,
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

s 
an

d 
jo

in
tly

 c
on

tr
ol

le
d 

en
tit

ie
s.

 

In
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l  

T
he

 w
ho

le
 s

ys
te

m
 o

f c
on

tr
ol

s,
 fi

na
nc

ia
l a

nd
 o

th
er

w
is

e,
 th

at
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

es
ta

bl
is

he
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

of
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 
op

er
at

io
ns

, i
nt

er
na

l f
in

an
ci

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 la

w
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
.  

Page 57



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
22

 M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

 

T
he

 A
P

B
 d

ef
in

es
 th

is
 c

on
ce

pt
 a

s 
‘a

n 
ex

pr
es

si
on

 o
f t

he
 r

el
at

iv
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

or
 im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f a

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 m

at
te

r 
in

 th
e 

co
nt

ex
t o

f t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

s 
a 

w
ho

le
. A

 m
at

te
r 

is
 m

at
er

ia
l i

f i
ts

 o
m

is
si

on
 w

ou
ld

 r
ea

so
na

bl
y 

in
flu

en
ce

 th
e 

de
ci

si
on

s 
of

 a
n 

ad
dr

es
se

e 
of

 th
e 

au
di

to
r’s

 r
ep

or
t; 

lik
ew

is
e 

a 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t i

s 
m

at
er

ia
l i

f i
t w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
a 

si
m

ila
r 

in
flu

en
ce

. M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

m
ay

 a
ls

o 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

in
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

t o
f a

ny
 in

di
vi

du
al

 p
rim

ar
y 

st
at

em
en

t w
ith

in
 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 o
r 

of
 in

di
vi

du
al

 it
em

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
em

. M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

is
 n

ot
 c

ap
ab

le
 o

f g
en

er
al

 m
at

he
m

at
ic

al
 d

ef
in

iti
on

, a
s 

it 
ha

s 
bo

th
 q

ua
lit

at
iv

e 
an

d 
qu

an
tit

at
iv

e 
as

pe
ct

s’
.  

T
he

 te
rm

 ‘m
at

er
ia

lit
y’

 a
pp

lie
s 

on
ly

 to
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
. A

ud
ito

rs
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 h
av

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
du

tie
s 

un
de

r 
st

at
ut

e,
 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
th

ei
r 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

 g
iv

e 
an

 o
pi

ni
on

 o
n 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

, w
hi

ch
 d

o 
no

t n
ec

es
sa

ril
y 

af
fe

ct
 th

ei
r 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
.  

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

ce
 

T
he

 c
on

ce
pt

 o
f ‘

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e’

 a
pp

lie
s 

to
 th

es
e 

w
id

er
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
au

di
to

rs
 a

do
pt

 a
 le

ve
l o

f s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 th
at

 m
ay

 d
iff

er
 fr

om
 th

e 
m

at
er

ia
lit

y 
le

ve
l 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 th

ei
r 

au
di

t o
f t

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

. S
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 h
as

 b
ot

h 
qu

al
ita

tiv
e 

an
d 

qu
an

tit
at

iv
e 

as
pe

ct
s.

  

T
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 

T
ho

se
 e

nt
ru

st
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n,

 c
on

tr
ol

 a
nd

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y.
 T

hi
s 

te
rm

 in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

an
d 

its
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
. 

W
h

o
le

 o
f 

G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
A

cc
o

u
n

ts
  

A
 p

ro
je

ct
 le

ad
in

g 
to

 a
 s

et
 o

f c
on

so
lid

at
ed

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
en

tir
e 

U
K

 p
ub

lic
 s

ec
to

r 
on

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
. T

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

m
us

t s
ub

m
it 

a 
co

ns
ol

id
at

io
n 

pa
ck

 to
 th

e 
de

pa
rt

m
en

t f
or

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t w
hi

ch
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n,
 b

ut
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

fr
om

, i
ts

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
. 

   Page 58



  If 
yo

u 
re

qu
ire

 a
 c

op
y 

of
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t i

n 
an

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

fo
rm

at
 o

r 
in

 a
 la

ng
ua

ge
 o

th
er

 th
an

 E
ng

lis
h,

 p
le

as
e 

ca
ll:

  
08

44
 7

98
 7

07
0 

©
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 2
01

2.
 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 P

ub
lis

hi
ng

 T
ea

m
. 

Im
ag

e 
co

py
rig

ht
 ©

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. 

 T
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 A

ud
ite

d 
B

od
ie

s 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 e

xp
la

in
s 

th
e 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
of

 a
ud

ito
rs

 
an

d 
of

 th
e 

au
di

te
d 

bo
dy

. R
ep

or
ts

 p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

re
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 to
 n

on
-e

xe
cu

tiv
e 

di
re

ct
or

s,
 m

em
be

rs
 o

r 
of

fic
er

s.
 T

he
y 

ar
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r 

th
e 

so
le

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
ite

d 
bo

dy
. A

ud
ito

rs
 a

cc
ep

t n
o 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

: 
!

 
an

y 
di

re
ct

or
/m

em
be

r 
or

 o
ffi

ce
r 

in
 th

ei
r 

in
di

vi
du

al
 c

ap
ac

ity
; o

r 
 

!
 

an
y 

th
ird

 p
ar

ty
.  

           

 
 w

w
w

.a
u

d
it

-c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

.g
o

v.
u

k 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ja

n
u

ar
y 

20
12

 

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 
AUDIT BOARD   29TH MARCH 2012 
     
 

AUDIT COMMISSION PROGRESS REPORT  2011/12  
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr Roger Hollingworth  
Portfolio Holder Consulted  No  
Relevant Head of Service Jayne Pickering ( Exec Director)  
Wards Affected  All 
Ward Councillor Consulted None specific  
 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 

 
1.1 To present to members the Audit Commission progress update in 

relation to the 2011/12 Audit. A copy of this document is attached to this 
report as Appendix A. 

  
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 Members are asked to note and comment on the current progress. 
 

 
3. KEY ISSUES 

 
 Financial Implications    

 
3.1 The fee associated with the External Audit Opinion and audit of 

accounting statements and consideration of the Councils arrangements 
for securing economy, effectiveness and efficiency is £106k. This 
reflects an 11.5% reduction from 2010/11 Audit fee. 

 
 

 Legal Implications 
 

3.2  The Council has a statutory responsibility to formally prepare accounts 
in compliance with national guidelines and ensure these are audited by 
an audited body. 

 
 
 Service / Operational Implications  

 
3.3 Attached at Appendix A is the 2011/12 Audit Progress Update. The 

report reflects the work undertaken in relation to the audit of the 
2011/12 accounts and general information  on the national issues that 
may impact on the Council. In addition the report updates members on 
the changes to external audit arrangements in the future. 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 61



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 
AUDIT BOARD   29TH MARCH 2012 
     
 

3.4 Officers will continue to work with the Audit Commission to ensure that 
accounts are produced in a timely and accurate way to enable the 
Audit to be undertaken as smoothly as possible. 
 

 Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications  
 

3.5 None as a direct result of this report 
 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT    
 

4.1 The Financial Services risk register includes the preparation of the 
accounts and the controls in place to ensure the accounts are treated 
in compliance with accounting standards. Risk management 
arrangements in place across the organisation ensure that risks are 
addressed and mitigated. 

 
5. APPENDICES 

 
  Appendix 1 – Audit Commission Audit Committee update 2011/12 
   

.   
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:  Jayne Pickering – Exec Director Finance and Resources   
E Mail: j.pickering@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Tel:  01527-881400  

Page 62



Audit Committee 
Update
Bromsgrove District Council 

Audit 2011/12 

Page 63



The Audit Commission is a public corporation set up in 

1983 to protect the public purse.

The Commission appoints auditors to councils, NHS 

bodies (excluding NHS foundation trusts), police 

authorities and other local public services in England, 

and oversees their work. The auditors we appoint are 

either Audit Commission employees (our in-house 

Audit Practice) or one of the private audit firms. Our 

Audit Practice also audits NHS foundation trusts under 

separate arrangements.  

We also help public bodies manage the financial 

challenges they face by providing authoritative, 

unbiased, evidence-based analysis and advice. 

 

 Page 64



Contents 

Introduction ........................................................................................................2

Progress Report.................................................................................................3

Financial statements.....................................................................................3

VFM conclusion ............................................................................................3

Other areas of work ......................................................................................3

Other Matters of Interest ...................................................................................4

2011/12 Final Accounts Workshops .............................................................4

Dealing with the economic downturn ............................................................4

Procurement Fraud in the Public Sector.......................................................4

Protecting the Public Purse 2011 .................................................................5

For information: Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011.............5

Localism Act 2011 ........................................................................................6

Openness and Accountability in Local Pay...................................................6

Update on the externalisation of the Audit Practice.......................................8

Key Considerations ...........................................................................................9

Contact Details.................................................................................................10

 

 

Audit Commission Audit Committee Update 1
 

Page 65



Introduction  

1 The purpose of this paper is to provide the Audit Committee with a 
report on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external 
auditors. It includes an update on the externalisation of the Audit Practice. 

2 This paper also seeks to highlight key emerging national issues and 
developments which may be of interest to members of the Audit Board. The 
paper concludes by asking a number of questions which the Board may 
wish to consider in order to assess whether it has received sufficient 
assurance on emerging issues. 

3 If you require any additional information regarding the issues included 
within this briefing, please feel free to contact me or your Audit Manager 
using the contact details at the end of this update. 

4 Finally, please also remember to visit our website (www.audit-
commission.gov.uk) which now enables you to sign-up to be notified of any 
new content that is relevant to your type of organisation. 

Elizabeth Cave 

District Auditor  

29 February 2012 

 

Audit Commission Audit Committee Update 2
 

Page 66



Progress Report 

Financial statements

5 My audit plan will be presented to the March Audit Board.  This plan 
outlines the key risks I have identified both in relation to my opinion on the 
accounts and the value for money conclusion. 

6 My team is currently undertaking the interim visit.  This involves 
updating our assessment of the Council's control environment and also 
reviewing the controls operating around the Council's key financial systems.  
We are also reviewing internal audit as part of that work. 

7 We have agreed with officers the dates of our final accounts visit. We 
have also provided a copy of our suggested working papers requirements 
(draft testing schedule) to key officers involved in the audit to assist them in 
their closedown.  We have arranged to meet with key officers involved in the 
audit in March and will continue to liaise with these officers in the run up to 
the production of the accounts and the audit. 

VFM conclusion

8 I have completed my risk assessment and this has influenced the areas 
to be considered as part of the work.  We have started this work and plan to 
complete it by mid April 2011. 

 

I will report any matters arising from our interim work to the next Audit Board 
in June. 

Other areas of work 

9 We undertake certification of claims work in the autumn, when we have 
completed the majority of the opinion work.  This year we will be transferring 
our work to the new auditors in October 2012.  It is likely that our work on 
the benefits claim will not be complete at this stage and arrangements will 
be put in place to hand over this work, we will endeavour to minimise the 
impact on the Council. 

 

Audit Commission Audit Committee Update 3
 

Page 67



Other Matters of Interest 

2011/12 Final Accounts Workshops 

10 The Audit Practice ran workshops in January to help your staff prepare 
your financial statements for 2011/12.  Bromsgrove staff attended the 
workshop in Warwick. and invited your staff to help them to prepare your 
financial statements for 2011/12.  

Dealing with the economic downturn 

11 On 17 November 2011 the Audit Commission published 'Tough Times - 
Councils’ responses to a challenging financial climate'. 

12 The report draws heavily on the expertise of the external auditors of 
each council and also includes new analysis of councils’ budget data.  

13 The key findings in the report are: 
! Most councils are managing well in the face of unprecedented 

reductions to their income, but services have been affected and a small 
number of councils may struggle to balance their books; 

! Although councils face a real terms loss of total income of £4.7 billion 
(7.5 per cent) in 2011/12, auditors felt nine out of ten councils are well 
prepared for this and are on track to deliver their budgets; 

! To meet the future challenge of cuts in government funding, some 
elements of councils’ cost-reducing strategies will have to change and 
many councils will face difficult decisions about how to meet their 
funding shortfall in the next few years; and 

! Councils are not planning to make significant withdrawals from their 
reserves this year - some even plan to increase them.  

14 The report recommends that councils use the Audit Commission’s 
Value for Money profiles to see how their council compares to the national 
picture set out in this report, identify councils facing similar challenges, and 
learn from others’ approaches.  

Procurement Fraud in the Public Sector 

15 The National Fraud Agency has recently issued a report on public 
sector procurement fraud which examines new approaches to reduce fraud 
risk and make processes both quicker and simpler. 

16 The report acknowledges that procurement fraud is a complex problem. 
It covers a wide range of illegal activities from bid rigging during the pre-
contract award phase through to false invoicing in the post-contract award 
phase. It can be perpetrated by those inside and outside an organisation.  

 

Audit Commission Audit Committee Update 4
 

Page 68



17 The report includes a number of case studies and details a number of 
actions that can be taken both immediately and in the medium term. 
 

Protecting the Public Purse 2011 

18 In November 2011 the Audit Commission published 'Protecting the 
Public Purse 2011 - Fighting Fraud against Local Government.' 

19 This report is based on the Audit Commission’s annual fraud survey - 
which is still the sole source of evidence about the levels of detected fraud 
in Local Government and related bodies.  

20 The report reveals that England's councils have succeeded in detecting 
£185 million worth of fraud, an improvement of 37 per cent on last year's 
figure of £135 million. This is equivalent to a year's funding for around 700 
libraries or the wages of up to 11,000 care workers. 

21 The key areas where fraud was detected are: 
! housing benefits and council tax benefits fraud, which accounted for 

more than half of the total fraud losses detected by councils; 
! false claims for student and single person council tax discounts - 

£22million; and 
! procurement fraud, with 145 cases amounting to £14.6 million. 

22 We have therefore developed a single person discount comparator tool 
that allows local authorities to compare their levels of council tax single 
person discount with their predicted levels, based on a national average and 
this can be found on our website.  

23 The report found that counter-fraud professionals increasingly recognise 
abuse of personal budgets in adult social care as a fraud risk for councils 
and, in addition to the above, the National Fraud Authority estimates that 
housing tenancy fraud could cost up to £900 million each year. 

24 The report concludes with a checklist that organisations may find it 
helpful to self-assess against. Covering a wide range of issues from 
procurement to recruitment, it will help provide Audit Committees with 
assurance over the arrangements in place. 

25 In addition to the core report, there are separate briefings to specifically 
aid governors in schools and councillors in parish and town councils.  
 

For information: Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act 2011 

26 The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act received Royal Assent 
on 15 September 2011. 

27 This Act will abolish police authorities in England and Wales and 
replace them with directly elected police and crime commissioners.  

28 The Act requires the police and crime commissioner for a policing area 
to hold the chief constable to account, while also safeguarding the chief 

 

Audit Commission Audit Committee Update 5
 

Page 69



constable’s operational independence. A police and crime panel, 
established by the local authorities in a police area, will provide independent 
scrutiny of the police and crime commissioner. 

29 The first elections of police and crime commissioners will take place on 
15 November 2012 and police authorities will be abolished within a week of 
these elections. All staff and assets will transfer in the first instance to the 
office of the police and crime commissioner.  
 

Localism Act 2011 

30 On 15 November 2011 the Localism Bill received Royal Assent.  

31 The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has 
published an updated plain English guide to the Localism Act to reflect the 
final legislation and this may be of interest to members of the Audit Board. 

32 Subject to commencement, key measures of the Act include: 
! introducing a new general power of competence, giving councils 

freedom to work together to improve services and drive down costs. 
Councils are now free to do anything - provided they do not break other 
laws; 

! giving communities the right to approve or veto - by way of a 
referendum - Council Tax increases higher than a limit determined by 
the Government.  

! opening the door for the transfer of power to major cities to develop 
their areas, improve local services, and boost their local economies; 

! abolishing the Standards Board; 
! clarifying the rules on predetermination in order to free up councillors to 

express their opinions on issues of local importance without the fear of 
legal challenge; 

! enabling councils to return to the committee system of governance, if 
they wish, regardless of their size; 

! giving councils greater control over business rates. Councils will have 
the power to offer business rate discounts, which could help attract 
firms, investment and jobs;  

! promoting openness regarding the pay of senior officers; and 
! allowing councils to keep the rent they collect and use it locally to 

maintain social homes through the abolition of the housing revenue 
account. 

33 Many of the measures in the Localism Act are expected to be in place 
by April 2012. 

Openness and Accountability in Local Pay 

34 The Localism Act referred to earlier requires local authority pay policies 
to be openly approved by democratically elected councillors.  

35 On 17 November 2011 the Department for Communities and Local 
Government published guidance which sets out the requirements for 

 

Audit Commission Audit Committee Update 6
 

Page 70



councils to publish their remuneration arrangements and approve larger 
salary packages in an open session of the full council. 

36 Pay policy statements must be in place by 31 March 2012 and Ministers 
explicitly say in the guidance that the pay vote ceiling should be set at 
£100,000.  

37 There will be a requirement to publicly justify any big bonuses, above 
inflation annual pay rises, or hiring a person already in receipt of retirement 
or severance money and organisations should state in their pay policy 
statement whether or not they permit such practices. 

 

Audit Commission Audit Committee Update 7
 

Page 71



Update on the externalisation of the Audit 
Practice 

38   The Audit Commission’s Chief Executive, Eugene Sullivan, wrote to 
clients on 21 September 2011 summarising the Department for 
Communities and Local Government’s plans for externalising the Audit 
Commission's work that is currently undertaken by the Audit Practice.  

39 The key points are: 
! Contracts will be let from 2012/13 on a three- or five-year basis. The 

earliest you will be able to appoint your own auditors is therefore for the 
2015/16 audit. 

! The work is split into four regions, comprising ten ‘lots’. Each lot will be 
awarded separately, but any individual bidder can only win a maximum 
of one lot in each region (i.e. four lots in total). 

! The Commission is managing a procurement process to allow suitable 
private-sector providers the opportunity to bid.  

! The contract awards were planned for late-February 2012, with formal 
Commission approval planned for late July 2012 following consultation.  

! Appointments will start on 1 September 2012. As such, the Commission 
will extend the current audit appointment to allow any audit issues 
arising between 1 April 2012 and 31 August 2012 to be dealt with. The 
costs of this ‘interim’ audit role will be met by the Commission. 

! Audit Practice staff in each lot area will in the main transfer to the 
successful bidders on 31 October 2012. 

40 A further update was provided in Eugene Sullivan's letter to clients of 10 
November 2011. Thirteen potential providers were invited to tender 
following the initial pre-qualification stage.  

41 Further details are available on the Audit Commission’s website. I will 
continue to keep you updated on developments.  

42 Against this background, the Audit Practice’s focus remains: 
! Fulfilling our remaining responsibilities – completing our work for 

2010/11 and delivering your 2011/12 audit - to the high standards you 
expect and deserve. 

! Managing a smooth transition from the Audit Practice to your new audit 
provider. 

 

Audit Commission Audit Committee Update 8
 

Page 72



Key Considerations 

The Audit Committee may wish to consider the following questions in 
respect of the issues highlighted in this briefing paper.   

43 Has the Council considered the Tough Times report and made 
appropriate use of the Audit Commission's VFM profiles?
! Has the Council used the single person discount comparator tool to 

compare its levels of council tax single person discount with the 
predicted level?  

! Has the Council completed the fraud prevention checklist and, where 
appropriate, developed an action plan to address any weaknesses? 

! Has the Council circulated the DCLG's plain English guide to the 
Localism Act to all members?  

! Has the Council responded to the DCLG's consultation exercise on the 
Housing Revenue Account self-financing determinations?  

 

Audit Commission Audit Committee Update 9
 

Page 73



Contact Details 

44 If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, please 
feel free to contact either your District Auditor / Engagement Lead or Audit 
Manager. 

45 Alternatively, all Audit Commission reports - and a wealth of other 
material - can be found on our website: www.audit-commission.gov.uk. 

  

 

Elizabeth Cave 

District Auditor 0844 798 7552 

0781 801 5963 

l-cave@audit-commission.gov.uk

 

Zoe Thomas 

Audit Manager 

0844 798 7557 

077837 385337 

z-thomas@audit-commission.gov.uk
 

 

Audit Commission Audit Committee Update 10
 

Page 74



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
AUDIT BOARD Date 29TH March 2012 
 
NATIONAL FRAUD INITIATIVE UPDATE  
 

Relevant Portfolio Holder 
Councillor Roger Hollingworth 
Portfolio Holder for Finance, Partnerships 
and Economic Development 

Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes 

Relevant Head of Service Teresa Kristunas, Head of Finance and 
Resources  

Ward(s) Affected All 
Ward Councillor(s) Consulted No 
Key Decision / Non-Key Decision Non-Key Decision 
 
 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1 This report has been written to provide background information in relation to the 

bi-annual Datamatching exercise with the Audit Commission.  Information 
contained in this report relates to matches received in February 2011, using data 
extracted and forwarded to the Audit Commission in October 2010.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 For the Audit Board to note the contents and outcomes attached to this piece of 

work.  
 
3. KEY ISSUES 

 
Financial Implications 

 
3.1 Councils have to make reductions in spending.  Significant savings can be made 

by reducing the impact of potential fraud against the Council.  This can help to 
protect frontline jobs and services. 

 
3.2 By being part of this Datamatching exercise with the Audit Commission (which is 

mandatory not voluntary), this enables the Council to review its internal 
procedures and clarify any queries raised.  Where an irregularity is identified and 
proven, the details are corrected on relevant Council Systems and recoveries of 
any overpaid monies are undertaken.  Where there is a case for consideration of 
a fraud investigation, the details would be supplied to the Corporate Anti-Fraud 
Team to take further. 

 
3.3 In total 1629 number of data matches were received of which the following 

numbers related to the areas noted: 
 

Housing & Council Tax Benefit  690 
Concessionary Fares   256 
Creditors History    274 

Agenda Item 9

Page 75



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
AUDIT BOARD Date 29TH March 2012 
 

Creditors Standing    319 
Payroll     89 
Insurance Claims     1 
 
As at 9 January 2012, 1408 referrals had been processed, with 12 fraudulent 
overpayments recorded plus 5 error cases.  The total overpayments raised are 
£63,744.07 of which 16 are in recovery (with 1 fully recovered).  These relate to 
Housing and Council Tax Benefit claims only. 
 
Referrals outstanding are as follows (as at 9 January 2012): 
 
Duplicate records for Creditors (being dealt with by Finance)  = 167 
Housing Benefits (being dealt with by CAFT and/or DWP) = 55  
Payroll vs Creditors (being dealt with by CAFT)   = 1 
 

 
 The next batch of Datamatching cases is due in February 2012, involving 

matches between Electoral Register and Council Tax Single Person Discount.  
This will be another major input of work into the Corporate Anti-Fraud Team, but 
will allow the team to review the effectiveness of single person discounts 
awarded by the Authority whilst also identifying any fraudulent cases as relevant. 

 
Legal Implications 

 
3.4 There are no legal implications.   

 
Service / Operational Implications 

 
3.5 Whilst this type of work is significant both in workload but also in the time it takes 

to process, it provides a level of assurance regarding fraud affecting the Council 
with only 0.8% of such referrals requiring further more detailed attention. 
 
Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications 

 
3.6 None  
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
4.1 The National Fraud Initiative is a mandatory piece of work that the Council needs 

to undertake, currently with the Audit Commission.  At present, the matches are 
checked by the relevant teams (such as finance transactions/queries being 
reviewed by the Finance Team).  Providing the relevant systems and processes 
are in place to prevent abuse, this is not an issue, however if they are not, this 
should be identified on the Risk Register for the relevant departments.  

  
 
 
 
 

Page 76



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
AUDIT BOARD Date 29TH March 2012 
 
5. APPENDICES 

 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS  

 
7. KEY 
 

CAFT – Corporate Anti-Fraud Team 
DWP – Department for Work and Pensions 
 
 

 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Marie Wall, Fraud Services Manager 
email: m.wall@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Tel.: 01527 881240 

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
AUDIT BOARD Date 29TH March 2012 
 
OVERPAYMENTS UPDATE 
 

Relevant Portfolio Holder 
Councillor Roger Hollingworth 
Portfolio Holder for Finance, Partnerships 
and Economic Development 

Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes 

Relevant Head of Service Teresa Kristunas, Head of Finance and 
Resources  

Ward(s) Affected All 
Ward Councillor(s) Consulted No 
Key Decision / Non-Key Decision Non-Key Decision 
 
 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1 This document is written as requested by the Audit Board on 15 December 2011, 

in relation to clarification required in relation to Housing Benefit and Council Tax 
Benefit overpayments. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the Audit Board approve this document and the additional information 

contained within it. 
 
 
3. KEY ISSUES 

 
Financial Implications 

 
3.1 Within the original report to the Audit Board (dated 15 December 2011), 

information confirming the amount of Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit 
overpayments raised were noted. 

 
3.2 Audit Board wished to have further information in relation to the total amount of 

Housing Benefit / Council Tax Benefit overpayments raised, showing the split 
between that and the amount of fraudulent overpayments raised.  In addition, a 
request was made regarding the proportion of overpayments collected, alongside 
comparison with neighbouring Local Authorities. 

  
3.3    During the financial year from April 2010 to March 2011, the following details in   
           relation to overpayments for Bromsgrove District Council, are shown below: 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 79



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
AUDIT BOARD Date 29TH March 2012 
 
 Total Housing Benefit/Council Tax Benefit Overpayments raised = £810,624.73 

(this does not include technical council tax benefit overpayments which are 
raised up to the financial year end regardless of when actioned – it only includes 
genuine overpayments)  

 
 Total Housing Benefit/Council Tax Benefit overpayments raised by the Corporate 

Anti-Fraud Team (CAFT) = £163,691.77 
 
 % of overpayments raised by CAFT against total overpayments = 20.2% 
 
 Recovery of overpayments is shown below: 
 
 Total overpayments raised during the year = £810,624.73 
 Total amount recovered during the year = £458,849.80   
 
 There is no facility within the Benefit System to identify what percentages of 

overpayments raised by the Corporate Anti-Fraud Team are recovered.  This 
cannot be provided. 

  
 The following Benchmarking data is collated quarterly, however as you will note, 

not all Local Authorities provide this data as a matter of routine.  The information 
below is as complete as can be provided; it does however provide an indication 
regarding the performance of overpayment recovery within Bromsgrove Council. 

 
  

% of overpayments recovered as a    
% of total overpayments outstanding   
Bromsgrove 57% 
Herefordshire 47% 
Malvern Hills 49% 
Redditch 28% 
Worcester 47% 
Wychavon 49% 
Wyre Forest   

   
 
 Bromsgrove District Council 
 
 During the financial year from April 2011 to September 2011, the following 

details in relation to overpayments are shown below: 
 
 Total Housing Benefit/Council Tax Benefit Overpayments raised = £406,513.04 

(this does not include technical council tax benefit overpayments which are 
raised up to the financial year end regardless of when actioned – it only includes 
genuine overpayments)  

 
 Total Housing Benefit/Council Tax Benefit overpayments raised by the Corporate 

Anti-Fraud Team (CAFT) = £176,274.90 

Page 80



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
AUDIT BOARD Date 29TH March 2012 
 
 
 % of overpayments raised by CAFT against total overpayments = 43% 
  
 Please Note – the National Fraud Initiative has had an impact on these figures 

as a major bi-annual Datamatching exercise which is undertaken by the CAFT 
team, in relation to all irregularities including Benefit related concerns. 

 
 Recovery of overpayments is shown below: 
 
 Total overpayments raised = £406,513.04 
 Total amount recovered during the year to date = £342,684.74   
  
 There is no facility within the Benefit System to identify what percentages of 

overpayments raised by the Corporate Anti-Fraud Team are recovered.  This 
cannot be provided. 

  
 The following Benchmarking data is collated quarterly, however as you will note, 

not all Local Authorities provide this data as a matter of routine.  The information 
below is as complete as can be provided; it does however provide an indication 
regarding the performance of overpayment recovery within Bromsgrove Council. 

 
  

% of overpayments recovered as a    
% of total overpayments outstanding   
Bromsgrove 84% 
Herefordshire  
Malvern Hills  
Redditch 68% 
Worcester  
Wychavon  
Wyre Forest 84.9%  

 
   

Legal Implications 
 
3.4 There are no legal implications.   

 
Service / Operational Implications 

 
3.5 To ensure that overpayment recovery remains priority as performance has 

increased significantly.  Due to the transformation agenda currently being 
undertaken, it is difficult to know what implications this may have on the future 
ability to maintain current performance.  This is part of the ongoing 
transformation agenda. 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
AUDIT BOARD Date 29TH March 2012 
 

Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications 
 
3.6 Recovery is sought in conjunction with the Overpayment Recovery policy, which 

fully considers equality and diversity implications.  Where necessary 
consideration will be given to writing off overpayments if they are deemed 
irrecoverable or not cost effective. 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
4.1 None 
  
5. APPENDICES 

 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
7. KEY 
 

CAFT – Corporate Anti-Fraud Team 
 

 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Marie Wall, Fraud Services Manager 
email: m.wall@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Tel.: 01527 881240 

Page 82



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL !
!

AUDIT BOARD  Date 29TH March 2012 
!
!

PROVISIONAL AUDIT ANNUAL PLAN FOR 2012/13

Relevant Portfolio Holder  Councillor Roger Hollingworth 
Relevant Head of Service Executive Director (Finance & 

Corporate Resources) 
Key Decision / Non-Key Decision

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

1.1 To present to Members: 

! the Bromsgrove District Council Provisional Internal Audit Operational Plan for 
2012/13 for noting, see Appendix 1; and  

! the Internal Audit Shared Service’s set of key performance indicators for 2012/13 for 
noting, see Appendix 2. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

! the Bromsgrove District Council Provisional Internal Audit Operational Plan for 
2012/13 is noted, see Appendix 1; and  

! the Internal Audit Shared Service’s set of key performance indicators for 2012/13 
are noted, see Appendix 2. 

3. BACKGROUND

Internal Audit Aims and Objectives

3.1 The objectives of the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service are to: 

! examine, evaluate and report on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control 
and risk management across the council and recommend arrangements to address 
weaknesses as appropriate;

! examine, evaluate and report on arrangements to ensure compliance with legislation 
and the council’s objectives, policies and procedures;  

! examine, evaluate and report on procedures to check that the council’s assets and 
interests are adequately protected and effectively managed;  

Agenda Item 11

Page 83



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL !
!

AUDIT BOARD  Date 29TH March 2012 
!

! undertake independent investigations into allegations of fraud and irregularity in 
accordance with council policies and procedures and relevant legislation; and 

! advise upon the control and risk implications of new systems or other organisational 
changes.

3.2 The Council is required under Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 
(as amended 2006) to “maintain an adequate and effective system of internal audit of its 
accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance with the proper 
practices in relation to internal control”. 

3.3 To aid compliance with the regulation, the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in 
Local Government in the United Kingdom 2006 details that “Internal Audit work should be 
planned, controlled and recorded in order to determine priorities, establish and achieve 
objectives and ensure the effective and efficient use of audit resources”. 

Formulation of Annual Plan

3.4 The Internal Audit Plan for 2012/13, which is included at Appendix 1, is a risk based 
plan which takes into account the adequacy of the council’s risk management, 
performance management and other assurance processes.  It has been based upon the 
risk priorities per discussions with Directors and Heads of Service as well as upon an 
independent risk assessment of the audit universe by Internal Audit.  The Internal Audit 
Plan for 2012/13 has been agreed with the council’s section 151 officer. 

3.5 By bringing a provisional plan of work to Members at this stage of the planning process it 
allows Members to have a positive input into the audit work programme for 2012/13 and 
make suggestions as to where they feel audit resources should be directed.  As with all 
plans it may subject to review as the year progresses in consultation with the section 
151 Officer. 

4. KEY ISSUES

Resource Allocation

4.1 The Internal Audit Plan for 2012/13 has been based upon a resource allocation of 300 
chargeable days, a resource allocation which has been agreed with the council’s section 
151 officer.  The Acting Service Manager of the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared 
Service is confident that, with this resource allocation, he can provide management, 
external audit and those charged with governance with the assurances and coverage 
that they require over the system of internal control, annual governance statement and 
statement of accounts. 

The Internal Audit Plan for 2012/13 is set out at Appendix 1.

Page 84



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL !
!

AUDIT BOARD  Date 29TH March 2012 
!

Financial implications

4.4 The agreed charge to the council for the delivery of the Internal Audit service for 2012/13 
is £69,242.  The charge for the delivery of the service in 2011/12 was also £69,242.   

Monitoring and reporting of performance against the Plan

4.5! Operational progress against the Internal Audit Plan for 2012/13 will be closely 
monitored by the Service Manager of the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service 
and will be reported to the Shared Service’s Client Officer Group, which comprises the 
section 151 officers from client organisations, on a quarterly basis and to the Audit 
Committee on a quarterly basis. 

4.6 The success or otherwise of the Internal Audit Shared Service will be determined by the 
performance against a set of key performance indicators which have been developed for 
the service.  These have been agreed with the council’s section 151 officer and are 
included at Appendix 2.

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 There are no direct financial implications arising out of this report as the provision is in 
line with that agreed with the council’s section 151 officer in December 2010 as part of 
the restructuring of the Internal Audit Shared Service. 

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1 See 3.2 above.

7.  POLICY IMPLICATIONS

7.1 None as a direct result of this report.

8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES

8.1 Compliance with the accounting standards supports the improvement objective across 
the Council.  

9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY CONSIDERATIONS

9.1      The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 

•Non-compliance with statutory requirements. 
• Ineffective Internal Audit service. 
• Lack of an effective internal control environment. 

9.2      These risks are being managed as follows: 

Page 85



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL !
!

AUDIT BOARD  Date 29TH March 2012 
!

• Risk Register: Financial Services 
• Key Objective Ref No: 3 
• Key Objective: Efficient and effective Internal Audit service 

10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS

10.1  There are no implications arising out of this report. 

11.  EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

11.1  None as a direct result of this report. 

12.  VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 
MANAGEMENT

12.1 A robust internal control environment ensures that Value for Money is delivered 
in the service provision across the Council.

13.  CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY

13.1  None as a direct result of this report. 

14.  HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS

14.1  None as a direct result of this report. 

15.  GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

15.1  Effective overall governance process.  

16.  COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF CRIME 
AND DISORDER ACT 1998

16.1  None as a direct result of this report. 

17.  HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

17.1  None as a direct result of this report. 

18.  LESSONS LEARNT

18.1  Nothing to report for this Board. 

19.  COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Page 86



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL !
!

AUDIT BOARD  Date 29TH March 2012 
!

19.1  None as a direct result of this report. 

20.  OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT

Portfolio Holder No

Chief Executive No

Executive Director (S151 Officer) Yes

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 

No

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  

No

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships

No

Head of Finance and Resources No

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services

No

Corporate Procurement Team No

21.  WARDS AFFECTED
All Wards.

22.  APPENDICES
   Appendix 1 ~ Provisional Internal Audit Plan 2012/13 
   Appendix 2 ~ Key performance indicators 2012/13 

23.  BACKGROUND PAPERS
 None. 

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name:   Andy Bromage 
Acting Service Manager - Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service 

E Mail:  andy.bromage@worcester.gov.uk 
Tel:       01905 722051

Page 87



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL !
!

AUDIT BOARD  Date 29TH March 2012 
!

DETAILED PROVISIONAL AUDIT PLAN FOR 2012/13    APPENDIX 1

SUMMARY OF DETAILED PROVISIONAL PLAN 2012/13
Planned Days for 2012/13 2012/13 2011/12

Core Financial Systems 49 54 

Revenues and Benefits 39 32 

Corporate Work 69 55 

Other Systems Audits inc follow up 73 107 

Completion of prior year's work 15 15 
Advisory / Consultancy inc NFI, Fraud & 
investigations 21 8 

       

Sub Total 266 271     

       

Audit management meetings 15 15     

Corporate meetings / reading 5 5     

Annual plans and reports 8 8     

Audit Committee support 6 6     

       

Sub Total 34 34     

      

TOTAL Audit Days  
300 305     

Page 88



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL !
!

AUDIT BOARD  Date 29TH March 2012 
!

DETAILED PROVISIONAL PLAN FOR 2012/2013 AUDIT PROGRAMME 

Audit Area 
Planned 

days
2012/13 

CHARGEABLE AND PRODUCTIVE 

Core Financial Systems   

Benefits 15

Cash, General Ledger & Bank 
Reconciliations 

11

NDR 12

Council Tax  12

Budgetary Control & Strategy 10

Treasury Management 7

Debtors 7

Creditors 7

Asset Management 7

 TOTAL 88

Corporate  

ICT inc. project auditing 14 

Shared Services 15 

Governance inc Procurement  10 

Risk Management 15 

Transitional arrangements (critical 
friend) 

15

TOTAL 69

Other Systems Audits 

Street Scene  inc abandoned vehicles, 
fly tipping, etc.  

12

Cemeteries  8 

Parks & Open Spaces  
(Sanders Park) 

8

Renovation Grants  
(including Festival Housing Contract and 
DFGs)

10

Page 89



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL !
!

AUDIT BOARD  Date 29TH March 2012 
!

Regulatory Service/Environmental 
Health

15

Climate Change
(grants received) 

10

Completion of Prior Year’s work 15 

Statement of Internal Control 3 

Follow Up on recommendations 10

Fraud and Special Investigations  8 

Advisory / Consultancy / Contingency 10 

TOTAL 109 

Audit Management Meetings 15 

Corporate Meetings / Reading 5 

Annual Plans and Reports 8 

Audit Committee support 6 

TOTAL 34

TOTAL CHARGEABLE  300 

Page 90



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL !
!

AUDIT BOARD  Date 29TH March 2012 
!

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2012/13                                                         APPENDIX 2

The success or otherwise of the Internal Audit Shared Service will be measured against the 
following key performance indicators for 2012/13. 

 KPI Target Frequency of 
reporting

1 % Plan delivered 
excluding overruns 

90% for 
year

Quarterly

2 Customer 
satisfaction surveys 

90%
Good or 
above

Quarterly

3 Number of audits 
delivered compared 
to plan 

18 Quarterly

4 Annual survey of 
Internal Audit 
Service

Good or 
above

Annually

The Internal Audit Self-Assessment checklist assessing compliance with the CIPFA Code of 
Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the UK 2006 should also be completed at the 
end of the annual cycle.  Any areas of partial or non-compliance with the Code should be 
reported as exceptions to the Client Officer Group and Audit Committee. 

Page 91



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
AUDIT BOARD  29TH March 2012  
 

 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOR INCLUSION WITHIN 2011/12 FINAL 
ACCOUNTS 
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Roger Hollingworth  
Portfolio Holder Consulted  Yes  
Relevant Head of Service Teresa Kristunas   
Wards Affected  All 
Ward Councillor Consulted None specific  
 
 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1 To approve the proposed Accounting Standards in preparation for the 

2011/12 Accounts.  
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
2.1 That the Audit Board approve the Accounting Policies, detailed at  
 Appendix 1.   
 
3. KEY ISSUES 
 
 Financial Implications 
 
3.1 The Council has a statutory requirement to produce a Statement of 

Accounts each financial year (Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011).  The 
Statement of Accounts presents the overall financial position of Bromsgrove 
District Council for the year ended 31 March 2012.  The format of the 
Accounts is stipulated by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) in accordance with the International Financial 
Reporting Standards. 

 
3.2 The Accounting Policies form part of the required Statement of Accounts, 

and are defined as the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and 
practices applied by an entity in preparing and presenting the financial  

  
 Legal Implications 
 
3.3 The Council has a statutory requirement to produce a Statement of 

Accounts each financial year (Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011). 
 
3.4 Approval of the Accounting Policies on which the bases of the Accounts are 

prepared is required. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 11a

Page 93



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
AUDIT BOARD  29TH March 2012  
 

 

 Service/Operational Issues 

3.5 None as a direct result of this report. 

 Customer/ Equalities and Diversity  

3.6 None as a direct result of this report. 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
4.1 None. 
  
5. APPENDICES 
  

Appendix 1 – Accounting Policies 
 
 

AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 

Name:  Deborah Randall – Accountancy Services Manager 

Email:  d.randall@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 

Tel:   (01527) 881235 

 
 
 
 

Page 94



Appendix 1 
 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
This section provides a summary of the significant accounting policies and 
estimation techniques used in the preparation of Bromsgrove District Council’s 
accounts. 
 
1. General Principles 
 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 
2011/12 financial year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2012. The 
Council is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 2011 which require the accounts to be prepared in 
accordance with proper accounting practices.  These practices primarily 
comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2011/12 and the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice 2010/11, 
supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory 
guidance issued under section 12 of the 2003 Act. 
 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally 
historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current 
assets and financial instruments.  
 
2. Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash 
payments are made or received.  In particular: 
 

• Fees for the provision of goods and services due from customers are 
accounted for as income at the date the Council provides the relevant 
goods or services.   

• Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where 
there is a gap between the date supplies are received and their 
consumption; they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet. 

• Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided on 
employees) are recorded as expenditure when the services are received 
rather than when payments are made. 

• Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is 
accounted for respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the 
effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the 
cash flows fixed or determined by the contract. 

• Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not 
been received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is 
recorded in the Balance Sheet.  Where debts may not be settled, the 

Page 95



balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the 
income that might not be collected. 

 
Accruals will be made for items of income and expenditure in excess of £500, 
lower amounts will only be actioned at the request of the relevant budget holder. 
 
3. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions 
repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. 
 
Cash equivalents are investments that are short-term highly liquid investments 
held at the Balance Sheet date that are readily convertible to known amounts of 
cash on the Balance Sheet date and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. 
 
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank 
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the 
Council’s cash management. 
 
4. Exceptional Items 
 
Exceptional items are ones that are material in terms of the Council’s overall 
expenditure and are not expected to recur frequently or regularly. Exceptional 
items are included in the cost of the service to which they relate (or on the face of 
the Income and Expenditure Account if that degree of prominence is necessary 
in order to give a fair presentation of the accounts). A full explanation of each 
exceptional item is given in the Notes to the Core Financial Statements. 
 
5. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and 
Estimates and Errors 
 
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of change in accounting policies or 
to correct a material error.  Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for 
prospectively, ie in current and future years affected by the change.  Changes in 
accounting estimates do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper 
accounting practices or if the change provides more reliable or relevant 
information about the Council’s financial position or performance.  Changes are 
applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances 
with an additional balance sheet presented at the beginning of the earliest 
comparative period. 
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by 
amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 

Page 96



6. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following 
amounts to record the cost of holding fixed assets during the year: 
 

• Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 
• Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where 

there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which 
losses can be written off 

• Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 
 
The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation 
and impairment losses or amortisations.  Depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by the contribution in 
the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital 
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference 
between the two. 
 
7. Employee Benefits 
 
Benefits Payable During Employment 
 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the 
year-end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave 
and paid sick leave for current employees and are recognised as an expense for 
services in the year. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlement, 
flexitime and time off in lieu not taken by employees before the year-end. The 
accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then 
reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday 
entitlements are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the absence 
occurs.  These are measured at the undiscounted amount that the Council 
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement. 
 
Termination Benefits 
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the 
Council to terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date 
or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy. They are charged on an 
accruals basis to the Non Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement when the Council is demonstrably committed to the 
termination or making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy. 
 
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory 
provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount 
payable by the Council to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the 
amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. 
 

Page 97



In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from 
the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension 
enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid 
to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at 
the year-end. 
 
Post Employment Benefits 
 
Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pensions 
Scheme, administered by Worcestershire County Council. 
 
The Scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sum and 
pensions), earned as employees working for the Council. 
 
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:- 

• The liabilities of the Worcestershire County Council pension fund 
attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an 
actuarial basis using projected unit method, i.e. an assessment of the 
future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned 
to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, 
employee turnover rates, etc. and projections of projected earnings for 
current employees. 

 
• The assets of Worcestershire County Council pension fund attributable to 

the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value. 
 
• The change in the net pensions liabilities is analysed in seven 

components:- 
 
i) Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of 
service earned this year – allocated in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement to the services for which the employees worked. 
 
ii) Past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year 
decisions whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – 
debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non 
Distributed Costs. 
 
iii) Interest cost – the expected increase in the present value of liabilities 
during the year as they move one year closer to being paid – debited to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
iv) Expected return on assets – the annual investment return on the fund 
assets attributable to the Council, based on an average of the expected 

Page 98



long-term return – credited to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 
 
v) Gains/losses on settlements and curtailments – the result of actions to 
relieve the Council of liabilities or events that reduce the expected future 
service or accrual of benefits or employees – debited or credited to the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs. 
 
vi) Actuarial gains and losses -  changes in the net pensions liability that 
arise because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the 
last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their 
assumptions – debited to the Pensions Reserve. 
 
vii) Contributions paid to the Worcestershire County Council pension fund 
– cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension fund in settlement 
of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense. 

 
 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund 
balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension 
fund in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting 
standards. In the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance, this 
means there are appropriations to and from the Pension reserve to remove the 
notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits 
for cash paid to the pension fund and any amounts payable to the fund but 
unpaid at the year end. 
 
An independent actuary, based on triennial valuations, determines the 
employers’ contributions. The review carried out as at 31 March 2010 was 
implemented with effect from 1 April 2011 and may revise the contribution rates 
payable by the Council in future years. 
 
There is no impact on the revenue account of the authority as a result of the 
application of IAS19 requirements as the effects are statutorily removed in the 
Statement of Movement in the General Fund Balance when calculating amounts 
chargeable to Council Tax payers. The resulting pension costs charged to the 
Council’s accounts in respect of its employees are equal to the contributions paid 
to the funded pension scheme for these employees. Further costs arise in 
respect of certain pensions paid to retired employees on an unfunded basis. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 99



Further information can be found in Worcestershire County Council’s 
Superannuation Fund Annual Report, available on request from: 
 
Mr. P Birch CPFA 
Director of Resources 
Worcestershire County Council 
County Hall, Spetchley Road, 
Worcester WR5 2NP 
 
8.  Events After the Reporting Period 
 
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and 
unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date 
when the Statement of Accounts is authorized for issue.  Two types of events 
can be identified: 
 

• Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the 
reporting period – the statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such 
events. 

• Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period 
– the Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but 
where a category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is 
made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial 
effect. 

 
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in 
the Statement of Accounts. 
 
9. Financial Instruments  Review 
 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one 
entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 
 
Recognition 
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the Balance Sheet when the 
council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
 
De-recognition 
All financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cashflows from 
the assets have expired or the trust has transferred substantially all of the risks 
and rewards of ownership. 
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is discharged, 
cancelled or expires. 
 
 
 

Page 100



Classification and measurement 
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets and liabilities other 
than those designated and effective as hedging instruments are classified into 
the following categories upon initial recognition: 

• loans and receivables; 
• financial assets at fair value through income and expenditure; 
• held to maturity investments; and 
• available-for-sale financial assets. 
• Other financial liabilities 

 
Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments which are not quoted in an active market. They are 
included in current assets. 
The Council’s loans and receivables comprise: Fixed deposits, principally 
comprising funds held with banks and other financial institutions, cash and cash 
equivalents, trade receivables, accrued income, ‘other debtors’, borrowings and 
trade payables. 
 
Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction 
costs, and are 
measured subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, 
less provision for impairment. 
 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial assets and financial liabilities at ‘fair value through income and 
expenditure’ are financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading. A financial 
asset or financial liability is classified in this category if acquired principally for the 
purpose of selling in the short term. 
 
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated 
as hedges. 
Derivatives which are embedded in other contracts but which are not ‘closely-
related’ to those contracts are separated out from those contracts and measured 
in this category. Assets and liabilities in this category are classified as current 
assets and current liabilities. 
 
The Council’s financial assets and liabilites at fair value through income and 
expenditure comprise: Investments managed as a single portfolio by an 
appointed fund manager 
 
These financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, 
with transaction costs expensed in the income and expenditure account. 
Subsequent movements in the fair value are recognised as gains or losses in the 
comprehensive income and expenditure statement. 
 

Page 101



Held-to-maturity investments 
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments and fixed maturity other than loans and receivables. 
Investments are classified as held-to-maturity if the Group has the intention and 
ability to hold them until maturity. The Council currently no assets designated into 
this category. 
 
Available-for-sale financial assets 
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are 
either designated to this category or do not qualify for inclusion in any of the 
other categories of financial assets. The Council currently no assets designated 
into this category. 
Other financial liabilities 
All other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction 
costs incurred, and measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. 
 
The Council’s other financial liabilities comprise: borrowings and trade payables 
are classified as amortised cost. The comprehensive income and expenditure 
statement is charged with interest receivable/payable, impairment losses and any 
gain or loss on disposal/maturity.  
 
10. Grants and Contributions 
 
Grants and contributions are recognised when there is reasonable assurance 
that the council will comply with the conditions attached to them and the grants or 
contributions will be received. Grants and contributions are accounted for on an 
accruals basis and are recognised immediately in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement as income, except to the extent that the grant or 
contribution has a condition that the council has not satisfied.  
 
Revenue Grants and contributions are accounted for as follows:- 
 

• Revenue grants received with no conditions outstanding are credited to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure account. As the expenditure 
to be financed by that grant has not been incurred the grant or contribution 
is transferred to Earmarked Reserves reflecting it’s status as a revenue 
resource available to finance expenditure. 

• Revenue grants and contributions received where conditions remain 
outstanding are recognised as part of the Revenue Grants Receipts in 
Advance on the balance sheet. Once the condition is met, the grant or 
contribution will be treated as a revenue grant received with no conditions 
as above. 

 
 
 

Page 102



Capital grants and contributions are accounted for as follows:- 
 

• Capital grants and contributions received where expenditure has been 
incurred, where there are no conditions outstanding, are accounted for on 
an accruals basis and recognised immediately in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

• Capital grants and contributions received where expenditure has not yet 
been incurred, where there are no conditions outstanding, are accounted 
for on an accruals basis and recognised immediately in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. As the expenditure to 
be financed by that grant has not been incurred the grant or contribution is 
transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve reflecting it’s status as a 
capital resource available to finance expenditure. 

• Capital grants and contributions received where conditions remain 
outstanding are recognised as part of the Capital Grants Receipts in 
Advance on the balance sheet. Once the condition is met, the grant or 
contribution will be treated as a capital grant received with no conditions 
as above. 

• Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  Where the grant has 
yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital 
Grants Unapplied Reserve.  Where it has been applied, it is posted to the 
Capital Adjustment Account.  Amounts in Capital Grants Unapplied 
Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have 
been applied to fund capital expenditure. 

 
11. Heritage Assets 
 
The Council has undertaken a full review of all service areas to identify any 
collections of Heritage Assets which are held in support of the primary objective 
of the service provision.  The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed 
where there is evidence of impairment for heritage assets, eg where an item has 
suffered physical deterioration or breakage or where doubts arise as to its 
authenticity.  Any impairment is recognised and measured in accordance with the 
Authority’s general policies on impairment   Sale proceeds are accounted for in 
accordance with the Council’s general provisions relating to the disposal of 
property, plant and equipment. 
 
12. Intangible Assets 
 
Intangible Assets represent expenditure that has been properly capitalised but 
which does not create a tangible asset for the Council. Intangible assets include 
acquired and internally developed software used in the services provided or 
administration that qualify for recognition as an intangible asset. They are 
accounted for using the cost model whereby capitalised costs are amortised over 

Page 103



a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, as these assets are 
considered finite. Residual values and estimated useful lives are reviewed at 
each reporting date. In addition, they are subject to impairment testing as 
described in note **** . There is a corresponding transfer from the Capital 
Adjustment Account to neutralise the effect of the amortisation charges on the 
General Fund Balance.  The useful life applied to this classification of assets is 3 
– 7 years. 
 
Acquired software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to 
acquire and install the specific software. 
 
Costs associated with maintaining computer software, ie expenditure relating to 
patches and other minor updates as well as their installation are expensed as 
incurred. 
 
Expenditure on research (or the research stage of an internal project) is 
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. 
 
Costs that are attributable to the development phase of new customised software 
for IT and telecommunication systems are recognised as intangible assets 
provided they meet the following recognition requirements:- 
 

• Completion of the intangible asset is technically feasible so that it will be 
available for use or sale; 

• the council intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it; 
• the council has the ability to use or sell the intangible asset; 
• the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits. 

Among other things, this requires that there is a market for the output from 
the intangible asset or for the intangible asset itself, or, it is to be used 
internally, 

• the asset will be used in generating such benefits; 
• there are adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete 

the development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and 
• the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development 

can be measured reliably. 
 

Development costs not meeting these criteria for capitalisation are expensed as 
incurred. 
 
Directly attributable costs include employee (other than directors) costs incurred 
on software development along with an appropriate portion of relevant 
overheads. Internally generated software developments recognised as intangible 
assets are subject to the same subsequent measurement method as externally 
acquired software licences. However, until completion of the development 
project, the assets are subject to impairment testing only as described below in 
note ***** 

Page 104



13. Inventories and Long Term Contracts 
 
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value.  The cost of inventories is assigned using:- 

• The lower of cost and net realisable value, except where inventories are 
acquired through a non-exchange transaction in which case their cost is 
deemed to be fair value as at the date of acquisition or; 

• The lower of costs and current replacement cost where they are held for 
distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge, or the consumption in 
the production process of goods top be distributed at no charge or for a 
nominal charge.  

 
The council’s inventories comprise items for Central Depot Stores, Vending 
Machine Stock, Pest Control Stock and the Postal Franking Machine. 
 
Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services with the value of works and services received 
under the contract during the financial 
 
14. Investment Property 
 

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or capital 
appreciation.  The definition is not met if the property is used in the delivery of 
services, the production of goods or is held for sale. 
 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair 
value, based on the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between 
knowledgeable parties at arm’s length.  Properties are not depreciated but are 
revalued annually according to market conditions at the year end.  Gains and 
losses on revaluation are posted to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line.  The 
same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposals.  Revaluation gains 
and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the 
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and are posted 
to the Capital Adjustment Account and, for sale proceeds greater than £10,000 
the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
 
Rentals received for investment properties are credited to the Financing and 
Investment Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. 
 
15. Jointly Controlled Operations and Jointly Controlled Assets 
 
Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken by the Council in 
conjunction with other venturers that involve the use of the assets and resources 
of the venturers rather than the establishment of a separate entity.  The Authority 
recognises on its Balance Sheet the assets that it controls and the liabilities that 
it incurs and debits and credits the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Page 105



Statement with the expenditure it incurs and the share of income it earns from 
the activity of the operation. 
 
The Council is responsible for hosting Worcestershire Regulatory Services under 
a contractual arrangement which is defined as a Jointly Controlled Operation.  
Under this arrangement, each participant accounts separately for its own 
transactions arising within the agreement including the assets, liabilities, income 
expenditure and cash flows.  As host to the Regulatory Shared Service, the 
Council accounts for the expenditure incurred for Redditch Borough Council, 
Wyre Forest District Council, Worcester City Council, Wychavon District Council, 
Malvern Hills District Council and Worcestershire County Council, its partners in 
the arrangement.  However assets and liabilities of the pension scheme are the 
joint responsibility of the partnership.  These have been accounted for in the full 
accounts of the Council as host and the notes to the Pension Scheme give 
details of the amounts attributable to the partners as defined in the partnership 
agreement. 
 
Jointly controlled assets are items of property, plant or equipment that are jointly 
controlled by the Authority and other venturers, with the assets being used to 
obtain benefits for the venturers.  The joint venture does not involve the 
establishment of a separate entity.  The Council accounts for only is share of the 
jointly controlled assets, the liabilities and expenses that it incurs on its own 
behalf or jointly with others in respect of its interst in the joint venture and income 
that it earns from the venture. 
 
16. Shared Services  
 
The Council has entered into shared services with various other local Councils 
for the provision of services to ensure economical and efficient service provision.  
This arrangement is agreed by each of the partner Councils.  Under the 
arrangement each Council accounts separately for its own transactions arising 
within the agreement including the assets, liabilities, income, expenditure and 
cash flows.  The host for the shared service accounts for the income and 
expenditure incurred, including income from each of the partners to the 
arrangement.   
 
17. Leasing 
 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the property, 
plant and equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified 
as operating leases. 
 
 
 
 

Page 106



The council as lessee 
 
Finance Leases 
 
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the 
Balance Sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at 
the lease’s inception (or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if 
lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the 
lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are added to the carrying amount of the 
asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease 
liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they 
are incurred. 
 
Lease payments are apportioned between: 
 

• a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or 
equipment – applied to write down a lease liability, and 

• a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement). 

 
Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for 
using the policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being 
charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life 
(where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the authority at the end of the 
lease period). 
 
Operating leases 
 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement as a cost to the services benefiting from the use of 
the lease property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight line basis 
over the life of the lease. 
 
The council as lessor 
 
Finance leases 
 
Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property, plant or equipment, 
the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal and the 
carrying amount is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
 
 
 

Page 107



Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between: 
 

• a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or 
equipment – applied to write down the lease debtor 

• finance income (credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement). 

 
The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, or 
the write off of the value of disposals, is not to be adjusted against council tax. 
Amounts are therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the 
General Fund in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
Operating leases 
 
Where the Council grants an operating lease over property, plant or equipment, 
the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other 
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and expenditure 
Statement. 
 
18. Overheads and Support Services 
 

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit 
from the supply or service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA 
Best Value Accounting Practice 2010/11 (BVACOP).  The total absorption 
costing principle is used – the full cost of overheads and support services are 
shared between users in proportion to the benefits received, with the exception 
of: 
 

• Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Council’s status as 
a multi-functional, democratic organisation. 

 
• Non Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to 

employees retiring early and any depreciation and impairment losses on 
non-operational properties. 

 
These two cost categories are defined in BVACOP and accounted for as 
separate headings in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
19. Property, Plant and Equipment 
 

Recognition 
Property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset on the councils 
balance sheet if: 
 

• It is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the item will flow to the council,  

Page 108



• The cost of the item can be measured reliably,  
• The item has a cost of at least £10,000; or 
• Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £10,000, where the 

assets are functionally independent, they had broadly simultaneous 
purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and 
are under single managerial control. 

 
Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components 
with significantly different asset lives, e.g. plant and equipment, then these 
components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own 
useful economic lives. 
 
Measurement  
All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, 
representing the costs directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset 
and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management. 
 
Following initial recognition assets shall be valued as follows:- 
 

• Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction shall be 
measured at historical cost. 

• All other classes of assets are measured at fair value using a valuation 
method appropriate for the asset in accordance with IAS 16 and the 2010 
SORP. 

 
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement 
bases: 
 

• Operational land and buildings, other than low cost housing and rent to 
mortgage properties (see below), are included at existing use value in 
accordance with the 2011 SORP. 

• Low cost housing and rent to mortgage properties are included at market 
value. 

• Infrastructure assets such as environmental improvements (eg 
footbridges, highways furniture and bus shelters) are included at 
depreciated historical cost. 

• Vehicles, Plant and Equipment, other than park equipment and play areas 
(see below), are included at fair value. The council has adopted a 
historical cost basis as a proxy for fair value as the assets have short 
useful lives or low values or both. 

• Specialised operational assets such as the skateboard park and 
equipment in play areas and parks where there is no established market 
value, have been valued on a depreciated replacement cost basis. 

• Community assets, such as Parks and Recreation Grounds, are included 
at depreciated historical costs 

Page 109



• Investment Properties, which are assets that are not directly used in the 
delivery of a service and are held for investment potential with any rental 
income being negotiated at arms length, such as Industrial Properties, are 
included at market value. 

• Assets under Construction are new capital works that will result in the 
creation of a new asset but will involve expenditure over several years are 
carried on the Balance Sheet at cost and classified as non-operational 
until they are finished and brought into operational use. 

 
A programme of valuations, to be carried out by the County Council’s Valuation 
Officer (under an SLA), is in place to ensure all appropriate fixed assets are 
revalued every 5 years. The County Council’s Valuation Officer has been asked 
to review the impact of the current economic climate on the Council’s fixed 
assets and has confirmed that there is no material impact on their value in the 
financial year.  
 
Depreciation 
Depreciation is charged on all assets used in the provision of services. It 
represents the use of capital assets by that service. It is calculated on a straight 
line basis by writing off the cost or revalued amount for assets, less the residual 
value for each asset, over the useful life of each asset.  
 
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets with a 
determinable finite life (except for investment properties), by allocating the value 
of the assets in the Balance Sheet over the periods expected to benefit from their 
use.   
 
Depreciation is charged on the asset values at the beginning of the financial 
year. All assets have now been revalued within the last four years.  No 
depreciation is charged on assets in the year of acquisition or enhancement. No 
charge is made for non operational assets. 
 
The useful life of assets is based on individual assets but generally is based on: 
 

 Estimated 
useful life 

Other Land and Buildings 5-50 years 
Vehicles, Plant and 
Equipment  2-15 years 

Infrastructure 5-20 years 
 
Disposals 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the value of the asset in the 
Balance Sheet is written off to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.  Receipts from disposals are 
credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Page 110



Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.  Any revaluation gains in the 
Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.   
 
Amounts received in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts.  A 
proportion of receipts relating to housing disposals (75% for dwellings, 50% for 
land and other assets, net of statutory deductions and allowances) is payable to 
the Government.  The balance of receipts is credited to the Capital Receipts 
Reserve, and can then only be used for new investment or set aside to reduce 
the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement). 
Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement.   
As the cost of fixed assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for 
capital financing, the written-off value of disposals is not a charge against 
Council Tax; amounts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the written off value of 
disposals. 
 
Componentisation 
Where an item of PPE has major components whose cost is significant in relation 
to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.  The 
Council has established a threshold of £1 million for determining whether an 
asset needs to be componentised and a component value of more than 20% of 
the total asset value to determine if part of an asset is considered as a 
component. 
 
Residual values 
Where assets are held past their estimated useful life their residual values are 
usually immaterial or below the £10,000 de minimus level for inclusion on the 
balance sheet. Where an asset has reached the end of its estimated life and is 
still used, its value is reviewed to confirm that its value is immaterial.  This is 
done annually at the end of the accounting year. 
 
De minimus capital expenditure 
Purchases of assets or enhancement work with a value of £10,000 or lower are 
not recorded in the asset register.  De minimus assets financed from capital 
resources are written off to the service in the year that expenditure is incurred.  
Credits are made from the Capital Adjustment Account to ensure the written 
down assets do not have an impact on Council Tax. 
 
20. Impairment testing of intangible assets and property, plant and 
equipment 
 
At each reporting period end, the Authority checks whether there is any indication 
that any of its tangible or intangible non-current assets have suffered an 
impairment loss. If there is indication of an impairment loss, the recoverable 

Page 111



amount of the asset is estimated to determine whether there has been a loss 
and, if so, its amount. 
 
If there has been an impairment loss, the asset is written down to its recoverable 
amount, with the loss charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there 
is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Where 
an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is 
increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable amount but capped at the 
amount that would have been determined had there been no initial impairment 
loss. The reversal of the impairment loss is credited to expenditure to the extent 
of the decrease previously charged there and thereafter to the revaluation 
reserve. 
 
21. Non-current assets and liabilities classified as held for sale and 
discontinued operations 
 
Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as ‘held for sale’ once all of the 
following criteria are met: 
 

• The asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present 
condition subject only to terms which are usual and customary for such 
sales, and 

• The sale is highly probable and sale should be expected to be completed 
with 12 months of the date of classification as ‘held for sale’, and 

• The asset  (or disposal group) must be actively marketed for a sale price 
that is reasonable in relation to its fair value. 

 
When these conditions have been met, the asset or disposal group is classified 
as ‘held for sale’ and presented separately in the statement of financial position.  
 
Liabilities are classified as ‘held for sale’ and presented as such in the statement 
of financial position if they are directly associated with a disposal group. 
 
Assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying 
amounts immediately prior to their classification as ‘held for sale’ and their fair 
value less costs to sell. No assets classified as ‘held for sale’ are subject to 
depreciation or amortisation, subsequent to their classification as ‘held for sale’.  
 
22. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
 
Provisions 
 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a 
legal or constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of 
economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation.  For instance, the Council may be involved in a 

Page 112



court case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the 
payment of compensation. 
 
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council 
becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the 
balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into 
account relevant risks and uncertainties. 
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried 
in the Balance Sheet.  Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each 
financial year – where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic 
benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the 
provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service. 
 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be 
recovered from another party (eg from an insurance claim), this is only 
recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be received if the Council settles the obligation. 
 
Contingent Liabilities 
 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the 
Council a possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the 
occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in the circumstances where a 
provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 
reliably. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a 
note to the accounts. 
 
Contingent Assets 
 

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council 
a possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or 
otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council. 
 

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a 
note to the accounts where it is probable that there will be an outflow of 
economic benefits or service potential. 
 

23. Reserves 
 

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or 
to cover contingencies.  Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of 

Page 113



the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When 
expenditure to be financed from the reserve is incurred, it is charged to the 
appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council 
tax for the expenditure. 
 
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current 
assets, financial instruments, employee and retirement benefits and do not 
represent usable resources for the Council. 
 
24. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 
 
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute represents expenditure 
that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does not result in the 
creation of tangible assets.  Revenue expenditure funded from capital under 
statute incurred during the year have been written off as expenditure to the 
relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of the Revenue expenditure 
funded from capital under statute from existing capital resources or by borrowing, 
a transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts 
charged to the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance so there is 
no impact on the level of council tax. 
 
25.  VAT 
 
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not 
recoverable from Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs.  VAT receivable is 
excluded from income. 
 

26. Accounting for Council Tax 
 
As a billing authority, the Council acts as an agent, collecting and distributing 
Council Tax income on behalf of its major preceptors – Worcestershire County 
Council, West Mercia Police Authority, Hereford and Worcester Fire and Rescue 
Authority and itself. 
 
Council Tax income for the year is the Council’s accrued income for the year and 
not the amount required by legislation to be transferred from the Collection Fund. 
The difference between the amount included in the Income and Expenditure 
account and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General 
Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a 
reconciling item in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund. 
 

Page 114



The cash collected by the Council from Council Tax debtors belongs 
proportionately to the billing authority and major preceptors. This results in a 
debtor/creditor position between the Council and major preceptors for the 
difference between the cash collected from Council Tax debtors and the precept 
paid over during the year. The Balance Sheet includes the Council’s share of 
Council Tax arrears and associated impairment for bad debts, Council Tax 
overpayments and prepayments and the debtor/creditor position with the 
precepting bodies. 
 
27. Accounting for National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) 
 
The Council acts as an agent in the collection of National Non-Domestic Rates 
on behalf of Central Government. The cost of collection allowance is included as 
income within the Council’s Income and Expenditure Account. 
 
The Council does not include NNDR debtors in the Balance Sheet but instead 
shows a creditor or debtor for cash collected from NNDR debtors as agent of the 
Government but not paid to the Government or overpaid to the Government, at 
the Balance Sheet date. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 115



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13

Page 117

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 126

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14

Page 127

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 162

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Audit Board held on 2nd February 2012
	4 Audit Commission Annual Audit Letter 2010/2011
	Audit Commission Annual Audit Letter 2010/2011

	5 Audit Commission Annual Grants Report 2010/2011
	Audit Commission Certification of claims and returns annual report 2010-2011

	6 Audit Commission Opinion Plan
	Audit Commission Audit Plan 2011-2012

	7 Audit Commission Progress Report
	Audit Commission Audit Committee Update 2011-2012

	9 National Fraud Initiative Update
	10 Overpayments Update
	11 Provisional Audit Annual Plan 2012-2013
	11a Statement of Accounting Policies
	Appendix 1 - Statement of Accounting Policies

	13 Protecting the Public Purse
	14 Internal Audit Monitoring Report

